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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ: Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen.  My name is Ruben Diaz.  I am

          4  the City Councilperson representing the 18th

          5  Councilmanic District.  I am the Chairperson of the

          6  Aging Committee, and today we are calling this

          7  public hearing in order.  Let me read something that

          8  I have here about some data that I have.

          9                 Today we will be dealing with four

         10  resolutions.  Three of them are dealing with

         11  something called SCRIE, Senior Citizen Rent Increase

         12  Exemption program.  SCRIE was established in 1974

         13  under two different laws, the Emergency Housing Rent

         14  Control Law and the Rent Rehabilitation Law.  SCRIE

         15  will exempt qualified, low-income seniors, those

         16  receiving up to $20,000 from rent increases.  SCRIE

         17  will offer property tax abatement to landlords in

         18  exchange for rent increase exemption for a tenant.

         19                 SCRIE was previously administered by

         20  the Department of Housing Preservation and

         21  Development, HPD, and in 1992, the Senior Citizens

         22  Rent Increase Exemption program, SCRIE, was

         23  transferred to the Department for the Aging.  As of

         24  March 11, 2002, 44,000 senior citizen households

         25  were participating in the SCRIE programs.
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          2                 It takes $2.7 million to operate the

          3  program, and the City gives $71.5 million in tax

          4  abatements.  To be eligible to participate in the

          5  SCRIE program seniors have to comply with some

          6  criterion.  They are:

          7                 Seniors, who have to be or should be

          8  62 years or older when their current rent increase

          9  took effect.

         10                 The person has to live in a rent-

         11  regulated apartment or hotel.

         12                 The annual household income should be

         13  $20,000 or less.

         14                 The person has to file an

         15  application.

         16                 Tenants who live in a public housing

         17  authority project or are receiving Section 8

         18  subsidies, do not qualify for the Senior Citizens

         19  Rent Increase Exemption program or SCRIE.

         20                 People enrolled in the SCRIE program

         21  must re- certify their eligibility on expiration of

         22  each rent cycle.  If they are two different rent

         23  cycle, once every year and once every two years.

         24                 Today this Committee will deal with

         25  three resolutions regarding Senior Citizen Rent
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          2  Increase Exemption, or SCRIE.  They are:

          3                 Resolution 133, requesting the New

          4  York State Legislature and the Governor to enact

          5  legislation to amend the Real Property Tax Law in

          6  relation to indexing to inflation the maximum income

          7  allowed per person occupying rent units.

          8                 Resolution 143, resolve that the City

          9  Council of the City of New York calls upon the New

         10  York State Legislature to pass Assembly Bill 4227

         11  and its companion Senate Bill 2334 to amend the Real

         12  Property Tax Law to increase the maximum income

         13  eligibility level for SCRIE from $20,000 to $25,000.

         14                 Resolution 146, resolve that the

         15  Council of the City of New York calls upon the New

         16  York State Legislature to pass Assembly Bill A607,

         17  which would amend the Real Property Tax Law to

         18  exclude from the definition of income all medical

         19  and prescription drug expenses actually paid by a

         20  senior citizen, which were not reimbursed or paid

         21  for by insurance.  In other words, out- of- pocket

         22  money paid by the senior for medical expenses.

         23                 These are the three resolutions

         24  dealing with SCRIE.

         25                 And Resolution 94, this we're
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          2  exempting community organization, not- for- profit,

          3  exempting from taxing community organizations who

          4  propose to do senior citizen housing.

          5                 Ladies and gentlemen, before we take

          6  any testimony on these four resolutions, we have

          7  some member of the Bronx, some staff member that I

          8  would like to introduce.  We have Council Member

          9  Erik Dilan from Brooklyn; we have Council Member

         10  Kendall Stewart from Brooklyn; we have Michael

         11  Nelson from Brooklyn.

         12                 What, this is a Brooklyn - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Brooklyn is

         14  in the house.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  We have the

         16  Counsel of the Committee, Ms. Cheree Buggs, and the

         17  Senior Staff of the Committee, Mr. Christopher Ling.

         18                 I don't know if any of the members

         19  would like to say a few words before we start.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Mr. Chair,

         21  that only shows that Brooklyn concerns itself about

         22  the seniors, that is why Brooklyn shows right here

         23  today, and I want you to take note of that, Mr.

         24  Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Anyone else?  All
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          2  right, we're ready to take some testimony.  We have

          3  Ms. Donna Tessitore, Assistant Commissioner for New

          4  York City Department for the Aging, representing

          5  Commissioner Edwin Mendez- Santiago.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          7  Good morning. My name is Donna Tessitore, Assistant

          8  Commissioner for the Bureau of Senior Assistance and

          9  Benefits of the New York City Department for the

         10  Aging.  On behalf of Commissioner Edwin Mendez-

         11  Santiago, I would like to thank you for the

         12  opportunity to talk about the Senior Citizen Rent

         13  Increase Exemption Program, and allow me to comment

         14  on Resolutions No. 133, No. 143, and No. 146.

         15                 Let me just interrupt myself for a

         16  moment and introduce my colleague, Katie Mendez, who

         17  is our Director of Legislative Affairs.

         18                 The Department for the Aging

         19  administers the Senior Citizen Rent Increase

         20  Exemption (SCRIE) Program, which was established in

         21  1974, to assist low- income senior citizens living

         22  in Rent Controlled and Rent Stabilized apartments to

         23  remain in their homes by authorizing exemptions from

         24  increases in their rent.  In exchange, their

         25  landlords receive a dollar- for- dollar real
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          2  property tax abatement from the City of New York.

          3  SCRIE currently provides assistance to over 44,000

          4  households in more than 29,000 rent regulated

          5  buildings.  Over $70 million in benefits were

          6  provided to low- income households during City

          7  Fiscal Year 2001.  SCRIE provides exemptions from

          8  rent increases to New York City tenants:

          9                 Who live in a rent regulated

         10  apartment or hotel;

         11                 Who are 62 years of age or older;

         12                 Who are head of household or the

         13  tenant of record

         14                 Whose monthly rent, including any

         15  increase represents one- third or more of the total

         16  household income; and

         17                 Whose total household income for the

         18  previous tax year does not exceed $20,000.

         19                 SCRIE recipients must recertify their

         20  eligibility upon expiration of each rent cycle by

         21  filing a renewal application. Among the 44,000

         22  households participating in the program, the average

         23  SCRIE recipient is 76 years of age and receives an

         24  average monthly exemption of $166.11 per month.

         25                 As regard to Resolution No. 133,
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          2  where the City Council proposes to enact legislation

          3  that would implement an automatic cost- of- living

          4  increase for the SCRIE Program's maximum income

          5  eligibility level for applicants.

          6                 Over the years, the Department for

          7  the Aging has witnessed the impact of the rising

          8  cost- of- living on our clients. For many, their

          9  limited incomes cannot keep pace with the increasing

         10  costs of every day necessities, such as food,

         11  housing, transportation, and medical care.

         12  Therefore, legislation that acknowledges the need

         13  for a built- in Cost- Of- Living- Adjustments, COLA,

         14  in public benefit programs will be a significant

         15  help to individuals who are financially constrained.

         16                 SCRIE already has a longstanding

         17  practice of adjusting for COLAs on certain income

         18  sources such as Social Security and pensions, for

         19  individuals who are participating in the program.

         20  We believe that automatic adjustments to the maximum

         21  income eligibility threshold for SCRIE, can

         22  contribute toward easing the financial burden for

         23  senior participants.

         24                 As regards to Resolution No. 143,

         25  Resolution No. 143 proposes to raise the SCRIE
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          2  income eligibility limit to $25,000.

          3                 During the last decade, the State and

          4  City have enacted legislation twice to increase the

          5  income eligibility ceiling for the SCRIE Program in

          6  an effort to include more low income seniors in the

          7  program.  In 1992, the income ceiling  was raised

          8  from $12,000 to $16,500.  In 1996, it was raised

          9  again to the current level of $20,000.

         10                 There will be an ongoing need for

         11  periodic increases in the income eligibility for the

         12  SCRIE Program.  However, we believe that an

         13  incremental approach would be more effective.  A

         14  greater number of seniors would benefit sooner, if

         15  the income limits were increased in smaller amounts

         16  at more frequent intervals, rather than authorizing

         17  a dramatic increase to the income ceiling after a

         18  number of years have already passed.

         19                 We would urge the Council to consider

         20  a long- range plan for future increases that would

         21  facilitate more gradual increases at regular

         22  intervals to keep pace with the needs of seniors on

         23  a predictable basis.

         24                 As regards to Resolution No. 146,

         25  which calls upon the New York State Legislature to
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          2  amend the Real Property Tax Law, in relation to

          3  provide an option to municipalities to exclude from

          4  the definition of income all medical and

          5  prescription expenses actually paid by a senior

          6  citizen, which were not reimbursed or paid by for

          7  insurance, for purposes of determining eligibility

          8  for Senior Citizen Rent Increase Exemption Program

          9  benefits.

         10                 I would like to comment on several

         11  issues relating to Resolution No. 146, and submit to

         12  the Council various concerns that may not have been

         13  considered when proposing this resolution.

         14                 Medical treatment and prescription

         15  drug costs not covered by insurance can represent a

         16  significant financial burden to seniors living on

         17  fixed incomes.  However, we strongly believe that

         18  the SCRIE Program is not the proper venue to address

         19  this problem.  Instead, the adoption of Resolution

         20  No. 146 would have a negative unintended impact, for

         21  the following reasons:

         22                 1.  DUPLICATION OF EFFORT

         23                 At a time of fiscal constraint and

         24  limited resources, we must capitalize upon the

         25  strengths of organizations that already exist to
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          2  provide expert assistance to seniors concerning

          3  medical and prescription drug costs.  For example,

          4  thousands of New Yorkers in both low- income and

          5  middle- income brackets benefit by participating in

          6  New York State's Elderly Pharmaceutical Insurance

          7  Coverage, EPIC, Program.  EPIC is a widely used

          8  program for seniors, offering substantial savings to

          9  couples whose income does not exceed $50,000 and to

         10  individuals whose income does not exceed $35,000.

         11                 All SCRIE beneficiaries meet the

         12  financial criteria necessary to participate in EPIC.

         13    The Department for the Aging's outreach to inform

         14  seniors includes information about this valuable

         15  program.  Unlike SCRIE, which is designed to provide

         16  housing assistance, EPIC already has the

         17  administrative, medical, and pharmaceutical network

         18  in place to address this issue.

         19                 2.  BURDEN OF PROOF

         20                 We believe the Council's intent to

         21  provide seniors that have out of pocket medical and

         22  prescription expenses with relief through the SCRIE

         23  program would be thwarted by creating a process that

         24  would be excessively burdensome.  If we require our

         25  seniors to submit medical and prescription drug
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          2  verifications, it would create extremely long

          3  waiting times for approval of benefits. One of

          4  SCRIE's eligibility criteria is combined household

          5  income. Over one- third of the SCRIE population has

          6  multiple household members.   To implement

          7  Resolution No. 146, SCRIE would need medical and

          8  prescription documentation for all of the household

          9  members to determine eligibility.  Units with

         10  multiple household members often means that there

         11  are different health plans within one household,

         12  with varying coverage for each household member.

         13                 There are various medical insurance

         14  and drug prescription programs that have a

         15  deductible amount before the insurance companies

         16  cover the medical or drug expenses.  There are

         17  others that have a cap amount on specific

         18  medications, and/or cap dollar amounts on annual

         19  usages.  Medical plans may have one type of

         20  deductible and the prescription drug plan may have

         21  another method.  Many of the deductibles are by

         22  calendar year, others by a flat dollar value.  Some

         23  medical and prescription companies require the

         24  insured to prepay those physicians or druggists not

         25  within the network or associations.  It would be
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          2  impossible for SCRIE to keep an accounting of when

          3  these deductibles are reached and know when the

          4  insurance and drug prescription plans cover the

          5  expense.  SCRIE would need a team of insurance

          6  specialists to verify the various submissions of

          7  receipts, billings, account statements, et cetera.

          8  This would be an impossible process to manage, and

          9  would create a mire of documentation resulting in

         10  inordinate delays.  Moreover, because there are so

         11  many disparities between the various insurance plans

         12  and drug companies, there is no fair or equitable

         13  way for SCRIE to credit seniors for unreimbursed

         14  expenses.

         15                 The Department for the Aging proposes

         16  that Council consider a flat allowance per

         17  household, or per number of older household members,

         18  that may be deducted from income.  The flat

         19  allowance would be an equitable amount that could be

         20  determined by the average out- of- pocket costs to

         21  seniors for un-reimbursed medical or pharmaceutical

         22  costs as described by a national or statewide

         23  indicator.  This would allow the Department for the

         24  Aging to administer the program in a fiscally

         25  responsible manner, as well as to continue to
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          2  process SCRIE applications in a timely fashion. Most

          3  importantly, this will ensure that our seniors

          4  receive the benefit of a rent exemption for which

          5  they qualify.

          6                 Lastly, Resolution No. 94, which

          7  deals with affordable assisted living.  Resolution

          8  No. 94, calling upon the New York State Legislature

          9  to adopt Assembly Bill A.4886 and its companion

         10  bill, S.2614, which would amend Section 422(1)(a) of

         11  the Real Property Tax Law, in relation to providing

         12  real property tax exemptions to not- for- profit

         13  corporations seeking to construct affordable

         14  assisted living facilities for seniors with low- to

         15  middle- incomes.

         16                 The Department for the Aging supports

         17  the creation of more supportive housing units for

         18  older New Yorkers in every income bracket.  There

         19  are several recommendations that we have, in regards

         20  to this resolution, which we believe will clarify

         21  the Council's intent and protect seniors seeking

         22  this housing option:

         23                 Through discussion, we understand

         24  that the authors of the resolution intend to define

         25  the terms low-, moderate-, and middle- income
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          2  according to federal guidelines, which are based on

          3  percentage of area median income.  We strongly

          4  recommend that this language be inserted into the

          5  resolution.  The use of area median income to

          6  describe income guidelines is a common housing

          7  practice and will prevent confusion, interpretation,

          8  or disagreement should the law be enacted.

          9                 We also recommend that the term

         10  affordable assisted living be defined.  We are aware

         11  of assisted living facilities whose housing costs

         12  and service fees are below those of private sector,

         13  market rate facilities, and which therefore describe

         14  themselves as affordable.  However, they are still

         15  costly at $3,500 to $4,000 per month.  In exchange

         16  for property tax relief, we believe that the concept

         17  of affordability should be defined in a consistent,

         18  uniformly applied manner by government rather than

         19  individually by the housing sponsors.

         20                 Finally, we recommend that some

         21  thought be given to establishing a maximum

         22  percentage of income for residents to pay for

         23  housing with services.  While it is a common

         24  practice for housing subsidies to cap the percentage

         25  of income one should pay for rent, this rarely
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          2  applies in the assisted living environment.

          3  Therefore, it is not unusual to hear the expectation

          4  that families will help out with the costs for a

          5  parent, that one can pay up to 90 percent of your

          6  income on housing with services, or that the sale of

          7  an asset like a home can be used to defray the

          8  monthly charges.  We do not believe that these are

          9  either fair or accurate assumptions.  Families, who

         10  are often willing, may not be able to support a

         11  parent, or a change in circumstances may interrupt

         12  such support, leaving the older resident with no

         13  choice but to move out. If asked to pay 90 percent

         14  of their income for rent and fees, an older person

         15  with an annual income of $35,000 would have only

         16  $3,500 per year, for all expenses not covered by an

         17  assisted living facility.  This $3,500 would need to

         18  cover transportation to doctor's appointments, any

         19  meal not provided at the facility, prescription co-

         20  pays, and the list goes on.

         21                 Lastly, older New Yorkers, like the

         22  rest of us, are primarily renters and may not have

         23  the proceeds from the sale of a home or any other

         24  major asset to fall back on.  Even if they do, with

         25  many seniors aging in place, they may outlast these
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          2  assets and be forced to move out.  We would welcome

          3  the opportunity to participate in further discussion

          4  of these issues.

          5                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          6  share our opinions and concerns on these very

          7  important issues.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  Thank

          9  you for your wonderful testimony, Ms. Tessitore.

         10                 If I heard you right, the Department

         11  is supporting Resolution 94, 133 and 146, but it is

         12  not supporting 143, is that what it is?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

         14  have to go back to the numbers here, I'm sorry.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, it's not

         16  supporting 146. It's supporting everything else,

         17  except 146.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         19  Well as I tried to indicate in my testimony, we do

         20  have some concerns, which we have tried to be very

         21  specific about with almost all of the resolutions.

         22  But we support them in concept.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  What is your set

         24  position on 146? Because you say here, - -

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:
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          2  I'm trying to find 146.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  It's the one you

          4  are concerned with duplication of effort, burden of

          5  proof, what is it you have here?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          7  Oh, I think what we're trying to say with 146, which

          8  deals with the out- of- pocket expenses for - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  But you're

         10  supporting it?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

         12  think its, as written, it is completely unmanageable

         13  both for administratively and for seniors.  And what

         14  we are recommending is that if the Council wishes to

         15  account for these costs, that it does so by allowing

         16  a deduction from income.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  As you know, what

         18  we're doing in here, these are all money bills,

         19  Senate and the Assembly bills. The resolution calls

         20  for us to support those bills.

         21                 Maybe I'm wrong, but I don't know if

         22  we could change any wording on the bills, because

         23  they're already submitted in Albany.  What we're

         24  trying to find out, is, if the Council could support

         25  the bill.
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          2                 You are recommending some changes in

          3  the wording, I don't know if we could do that.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          5  Well, I guess --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:   Maybe we could, I

          7  don't know, But my question to the Department for

          8  the Aging is, is the Department supporting the

          9  resolutions?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         11  Not as written, because as I said, I think it is

         12  completely unworkable for our seniors and

         13  administratively.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So you're

         15  supporting 94, as it is written?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         17  That was dealing the cost- of- living increases, and

         18  we are supporting that - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes or no?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         21  Sorry, wrong number, tax exemption.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes?  No?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  We

         24  support the concept of the tax exemption.  We have

         25  some very specific concerns, as stated.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So this Committee

          3  assume that the Department for the Aging supports

          4  Resolution No. 94?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          6  Yes, with, again, with our provisos.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Resolution No.

          8  133, does the Department support Resolution No. 133?

          9    According to your testimony, yes.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

         11  don't think I can give you a yes or no answer on - -

         12    No. 133, the COLAs, is yes, we support the COLAs.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes, so the

         14  Department for the Aging support Resolution 143?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

         16  cannot give you a yes or no answer on that.  We

         17  understand and recognize that it has been quite some

         18  time since there has been an increase in the SCRIE

         19  eligibility requirements, as regards income.

         20                 We are also very mindful of the fact

         21  that we're in a financial crisis, and it will

         22  certainly, if passed, have an impact on revenue to

         23  the City.  So I feel unable to give you just a flat

         24  yes or no on that one.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  But you don't
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          2  oppose it?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          4  Well if I don't oppose it, that means I support it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, that means

          6  that you are neutral.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

          8  will choose that word, I'm neutral.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, so we do not

         10  have the opposition of the Department for the Aging

         11  in Resolution No. 143 that calls for the increase on

         12  an income of 20,0000 to 25,000.

         13                 Okay, now Resolution 146.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         15  Again, I think we're unable to support it as

         16  written, because it will - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So you're opposing

         18  the one?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         20  I'm opposing it as it is written, and would suggest

         21  that if the Council has the opportunity to offer

         22  some alternate mechanisms, to take that into

         23  account.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  All right, as the

         25  Chairman of this Committee, I could publicly,
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          2  openly, and surely say that the Department for the

          3  Aging supports Resolution 94, Resolution 133,

          4  Resolution 143, and opposes Resolution 146?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

          6  think I had a neutral in there, somewhere.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I know, you're

          8  neutral.  You're good.  Okay, thank you.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         10  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I don't know, let

         12  me, before you go, I have to recognize another

         13  member of the Committee, Domenic Recchia, Councilman

         14  Domenic Recchia, another Brooklyn guy.  What happen

         15  with the Bronx?

         16                 Any members have any questions for

         17  Ms. Tessitore?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, I heard

         19  what you were saying, I understand the difficulty in

         20  analyzing as far as prescription drugs and so on

         21  like that.  So I will get back to that a little bit

         22  later.

         23                 It's sort of clear to me, I think,

         24  that basically raising from 20,000 to 25,000 you

         25  would prefer to do it, and incrementally, if you
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          2  will, with noting inflation, your COLAs. But, and I

          3  know the situation the City is in, and we have not

          4  had a raise in six years, though.

          5                 Has any analysis been done, do you

          6  have any figures for the Committee in relationship

          7  to, or actually directly, approximately in, with the

          8  44,000 households; was it?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         10  Correct, about 44,000.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Given that it

         12  is not that much of difference when they're raised,

         13  in most cases, some may not always be the case,

         14  approximately what it would cost the City per month

         15  or per year?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         17  That I do not have, their have been, as you know, a

         18  number of proposals out there, and you know, the

         19  last legislative cycle, so we did not do specific

         20  analysis on the numbers.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  All right,

         22  that would be important, if you could, I don't know

         23  how long that would take to do that, but to factor

         24  in the cost for the households, if it went up to

         25  $25,000, how much, the difference between what it
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          2  would add up to.   Because I don't think, well, I

          3  don't know, I really, honestly don't know.  I don't

          4  think it would be that much more, but given the

          5  situation of six years, and I know so many people

          6  are making just $20,020, the combined annual income,

          7  and this has been going on for six years, and the

          8  predicament that so many of these people are in.

          9                 So if you could, I don't know if you

         10  could give us an estimate or how long that might

         11  take for the crunches to come up with that?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

         13  don't know, I will get back to your office or the

         14  Council's staff, as quickly as possible, obviously.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  And by

         16  the way, the 1992 increase, it was not from 12,000

         17  to 16.5 thousand, but the 1992 is from 15,000 to

         18  16.5; is that correct?  Though, that is my

         19  understanding.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         21  That is not my recollection.  It's before my time,

         22  but not my recollection.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes,

         24  according to Counsel, and I put money on Cheree

         25  Buggs.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          3  From 15 to 16.5, I don't think that there was

          4  anything that was just a $1,500 increase.  But we

          5  will check out figures and give you a citation.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Check that

          7  out, yes, only for accuracy as far as, you know,

          8  showing the difference in the raises through the

          9  years.

         10                 If there is a second round, I will go

         11  to that.  But I wanted to hone in on, if you will,

         12  on 143, for that purpose. Because I think that there

         13  is a crying need to raise the threshold. So if you

         14  would, please, that would be really important, and

         15  is there an approximate date, which you might be

         16  able to get back? Not holding you to it, like a

         17  week?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  A

         19  week, ten days.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Good, okay,

         21  if you would please get back to the Chair and the

         22  Counsel, I would appreciate that.  Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.

         25  Council Member Dilan.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Yes, I just

          3  wanted to address something in your testimony in

          4  regards to Resolution No. 94.  You say in your

          5  testimony that you strongly recommend that the area

          6  median income language be inserted into the

          7  resolution.  I guess, could you just elaborate on

          8  that a little further for me?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         10  Yes, I should have brought numbers with me, and I

         11  regret that I did not do that. But it is common

         12  practice to define income brackets by Federal Area

         13  Median Income guidelines, which are set for various

         14  localities around the country.  And that

         15  standardizes the definition of low-, moderate-, and

         16  middle- income.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I guess, you

         18  know, excuse my lack of ignorance on how this gets,

         19  how this effects New York City and the community.

         20  How is this formula determined, it is determined as

         21  it relates to the City by Community Board?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         23  No, it's for New York City actually, and the

         24  surrounding area.  I'm not quite sure what the

         25  entire area consists of, it is probably Westchester,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  Suffolk, parts of New Jersey and Connecticut, and

          3  New York City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Okay, so it is

          5  done regionally?  Okay, thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  All right, thank

          7  you.  I'm sorry.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Earlier you

          9  spoke about you're not quite in support of

         10  Resolution 146.  I get the sense that it is really a

         11  duplication of efforts seeing that we have the EPIC

         12  program, already, which includes all of the SCRIE

         13  folks, already.  And then the burdensome job of

         14  putting that together to do it, it will create even

         15  a bigger problem.

         16                 So I intend to agree with you, I

         17  don't think we should just put a resolution or

         18  support that just for supporting it sake.  It must

         19  make sense, it must be something that we feel is

         20  going to make a big difference, and I intend to

         21  agree with you on that, on that Resolution 146.  I

         22  don't know how my colleagues feel, but I'm just

         23  letting you know that I agree with you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.  I would

         25  like to advise my colleagues and other members of
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          2  the Committee that we are taking a vote, on all the

          3  four resolutions, today.  So I advise you to please,

          4  stay, because we're voting on all four today.  So

          5  after this meeting is over, as soon as the meeting

          6  is over, we will be taking a vote.  So if you want

          7  to move it up, we move it up, we do it, but we will

          8  take a vote today.

          9                 Any other questions?  No.  I

         10  appreciate, thank you, for the participation of the

         11  New York City Department for the Aging.  Please send

         12  my regards to the Honorable Commissioner of the

         13  Department.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:  I

         15  will do that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And tell him that

         17  this Committee always admire him, and admire all of

         18  you.  Thank you very much.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  The next speaker

         22  will be, Mr. Preston Niblack, New York City

         23  Independent Budget Office.

         24                 MR. NIBLACK:  Good morning, Mr.

         25  Chairman and thank you.  My name is Preston Niblack.
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          2    I'm Deputy Director of the City's Independent

          3  Budget Office.  Thank you for the opportunity to

          4  testify on this topic today.  My remarks will be

          5  brief, and I will address specifically Resolutions

          6  143 and 133, and the fiscal impact of those two

          7  resolutions.

          8                 IBO has looked at the subject of

          9  expanding SCRIE in complements and expanding it to

         10  the disabled on, at least, two occasions, and I will

         11  be drawing on our most recent analysis today. Since

         12  you're familiar with the program's details, I will

         13  skip the description of the program, and I will go

         14  straight to our findings.

         15                 First, we found that raising

         16  allowable maximum income adds a modest number of

         17  households, and hence, has a modest fiscal impact.

         18  We did not look specifically at $25,000, we looked

         19  at $30,000, and we found there that it would add

         20  just under 2 percent of currently eligible

         21  households, about 2,200 households altogether.

         22  Assuming current participation rates that would cost

         23  the City about $1.6 million a year, and as you know,

         24  it currently costs the City about $70 million a year

         25  for those who are currently participating.
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          2                 The reason that such a small number

          3  of households is added is that there is a relatively

          4  small number of households that both have higher

          5  incomes, above $20,000, and who pay more than one

          6  third of their income in rent.  And it is

          7  particularly that second factor, which was crucial.

          8                 I will just add parenthetically, we

          9  were surprised by this result somewhat, and although

         10  we cannot duplicate it exactly, we looked at other

         11  data sources to try to see if there was

         12  confirmation, and we found that other data sources

         13  was generally consistent with this finding.

         14                 Second, we did not specifically

         15  estimate inflation indexing the income, but that

         16  also would have a modest cost, because it would just

         17  raise the income incrementally.  The more so,

         18  especially since, as the Assistant Commissioner

         19  testified, social security and pension benefits

         20  increases are already exempt or excluded from the

         21  definition of allowable maximum income.

         22                 But just briefly on Resolution 146,

         23  we did speak, in preparing our analysis, we did

         24  speak with the Department for the Aging concerning

         25  the cost of implementation.  And although, we did
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          2  not speak specifically about this, I think that the

          3  Assistant Commissioner's finding that it would be

          4  burdensome for the Department to administer this, is

          5  undoubtedly correct.  And it will either be more

          6  costly because they will have to hire more people,

          7  or it will cost the same and they don't hire any

          8  more people, and as she said, will result in longer

          9  waiting times for applicants.

         10                 Let me make two additional points

         11  from our analysis that not directly address the

         12  resolutions, but which, I think, may be of interest.

         13                 The first would concern the

         14  participation rate.  If our estimate of the number

         15  of eligible households is correct, then only about

         16  one- third of eligible households are currently

         17  participating.  And we use that assumption in making

         18  our analysis of the fiscal impact of raising the

         19  income.  If you, by one means or another, were to

         20  raise the number of participating households, then

         21  costs rise proportionately.  So for instance, if you

         22  were to raise eligible, the participation rate of

         23  eligible households to 50 percent, it would cost

         24  about $28 million more per year to the City.

         25                 The other thing that we looked at, is
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          2  that we looked at the impact of lowering the

          3  rent/income ratio, because of our finding that there

          4  were relatively few households that paid more than

          5  one- third of their income in rent, with incomes up

          6  to $20,000. As you know, federal housing programs,

          7  including the Public Housing Authority and Section 8

          8  have a 30 percent income to, a rent to income ratio,

          9  and we looked at what would happen if you lowered

         10  the SCRIE threshold to 30 percent.  There you added

         11  four times as many households as you would from

         12  increasing the income, and you could, of course, do

         13  both.  But it was, you added almost 8,000 additional

         14  households holding the allowable maximum income at

         15  $20,000.  And that was also a very modest cost,

         16  about $2.5 million was our estimate, extra to the

         17  City.

         18                 Doing both, simultaneously, would add

         19  perhaps a couple of thousand extra households to

         20  that.

         21                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         22  to testify, and I'm happy to take any questions you

         23  have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Mr.

         25  Niblack, Deputy Director of the City of New York
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          2  Independent Budget Office.  If someone knows about

          3  budget and spending of the City is your office.

          4                 MR. NIBLACK:  We hope.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Let me ask you a

          6  question, let me go one by one.  Did you address

          7  number 94?

          8                 MR. NIBLACK:  I did not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So you have no

         10  opinion on that.

         11                 MR. NIBLACK:  I do not.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  So

         13  Resolution No. 133, that is the one calling for the,

         14  to amend the Real Property Tax in relation to

         15  indexing the inflation to maximum income allowed for

         16  persons occupying rental units.  Your office is

         17  supporting that one?

         18                 MR. NIBLACK:  The Independent Budget

         19  Office does not actually take positions or make

         20  recommendations one way or the other.  So all I'm

         21  here to do today, is to tell you that the cost to

         22  the City would be small.

         23                 So if you were concerned about the

         24  fiscal impact --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Let me ask you
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          2  another question, let me put it another way.

          3                 MR. NIBLACK:  Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  If this Committee

          5  decides to support that, the Independent Budget

          6  Office would not criticize this Committee as being

          7  superfluous?

          8                 MR. NIBLACK:  We would never

          9  criticize the Committee no matter what they did.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So we would not be

         11  spending too much money, if we adopt that

         12  resolution?

         13                 MR. NIBLACK:  You know, how the City

         14  Council and the Mayor decide to spend the City's

         15  money is why you guys are paid your salaries, and to

         16  help inform you in that is why I'm paid my salary,

         17  so.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  All right.  So you

         19  also say that Resolution No. 143, it would not be

         20  too big of a spend?

         21                 MR. NIBLACK:  Yes, that is correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, so the only

         23  concern would be Resolution 146.

         24                 MR. NIBLACK:  Yes.  There I think the

         25  major concern is, again, about the cost of
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          2  administering it, and either you have to add, I

          3  could not tell you how many personnel, but I do

          4  think that this would be onerous on the Department

          5  to administer.  They would either have to add more

          6  personnel, or you either would have to give them

          7  more money to administer it, or you would risk

          8  having considerable longer waiting periods as the

          9  applications come in.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  We all know that

         11  Resolution 146 deals with the out- of- pocket money

         12  that seniors have to pay for medical expenses.  And

         13  what this resolution calls for is that those

         14  expenses that are not paid by Medicaid or by

         15  insurance, that the seniors have to put out of their

         16  pocket not to be included as, you know, to be

         17  deducted.

         18                 MR. NIBLACK:  Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  To be exempted,

         20  that is what we're calling for.  You're saying that

         21  is too much problem, that is too much.

         22                 MR. NIBLACK:  I'm not saying that

         23  that is too much in the sense that you should not do

         24  it because of these considerations.  All I'm saying

         25  is that it would be difficult for the Department to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  administer and costly, or result in long waiting

          3  periods.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Would it be

          5  beneficial to the seniors?

          6                 MR. NIBLACK:  Undoubtedly.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Would it be

          8  beneficial to the senior citizens?

          9                 MR. NIBLACK:  Undoubtedly.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  Any

         11  questions?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you for

         13  your testimony.  I believe Katie Mendez is here,

         14  just to bring their study back, there you have a

         15  copy of this, as a matter of fact, so when you do

         16  your analysis you can see how close it comes to with

         17  what the IBO came up with.  I still suggest you do

         18  it also, your agency as well.

         19                 MR. NIBLACK:  May I just say, Council

         20  member, - -

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Sure.

         22                 MR. NIBLACK: - -  how helpful the

         23  Department was when we prepared this analysis,

         24  actually.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Oh, okay, so
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          2  they had an idea about this.

          3                 MR. NIBLACK:  They may recall that we

          4  did this.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes, I think

          6  there are just a good bunch of guys and gals, just

          7  trying to come to an agreement overall here.

          8                 One point six million annually, that

          9  was based upon $30,000, raising the threshold to

         10  $30,000?

         11                 MR. NIBLACK:  Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So in other

         13  words, I would vote for this, if I want to put in

         14  another reso to raise it to $30,000 after this, as

         15  well, that certainly is modest.  And the help it

         16  will give to these seniors who are living in

         17  basically abject poverty in a lot of cases, would be

         18  tremendously helpful overall.  So I appreciate IBO,

         19  as always, for bringing this to our attention.

         20  Okay, thank you, Mr. Niblack.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Council Member

         23  Dilan.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Yes, I just

         25  wanted to, I guess, maybe reconfirm one more time
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          2  what I have heard.  Is it the opinion of the

          3  Independent Budget Office that these resolutions, if

          4  adopted by this Committee, and eventually if enacted

          5  by the State Legislature, they are, I guess,

          6  fiscally sound for the City of New York with, I

          7  guess it appears, the opinion of your budget office

          8  of Resolution 146, which may cause some

          9  administrative problems for the Department of the

         10  Aging; is that correct?

         11                 MR. NIBLACK:  Yes, I think that all

         12  three Resolutions, 133, 143 and 146 would have

         13  modest fiscal impact in terms of foregone property

         14  tax revenues for the City.

         15                 And as you say, 146, as we have said

         16  and as the Assistant Commissioner testified, may

         17  have administrative problems.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Okay, if

         19  Resolution 146 were to be adopted and to come into

         20  effect, what do you think the, or you know you may

         21  have stated it, but I will ask again, what do you

         22  think the fiscal burden would be on the Department

         23  for the Aging for them to administer this properly,

         24  if you have those numbers with you?

         25                 MR. NIBLACK:  Right, I'm not sure
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          2  that I can be terribly specific.  The Assistant

          3  Commissioner testified, I believe, that they spent

          4  $2.7 million to administer the SCRIE program.  And

          5  we actually had a higher, I recall that we had a

          6  higher number.  I think and as I recall, the

          7  Department can correct me, there was something in

          8  the neighborhood of 60 personnel assigned to the

          9  unit.  I really don't know what the increase would

         10  have to be in terms of personnel, but if you doubled

         11  the number of personnel in order to deal with this,

         12  obviously, you have double the administrative costs

         13  or something close to it.

         14                 But I really cannot say, I don't have

         15  a number, I don't have an estimate.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I did not

         18  here you say much about Resolution No. 94, and that

         19  deals with in relation to provide in Real Property

         20  Tax Exemption to a not- for- profit corporation

         21  seeking to construct affordable assisted living

         22  facilities for seniors with low- to middle- incomes.

         23    I did not hear you say much about that.  Could you

         24  comment on that for us?

         25                 MR. NIBLACK:  You did not actually
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          2  hear me say anything about that, because I don't

          3  have any testimony on that today.  If you would like

          4  us to pursue it anyway, I would be happy to speak

          5  with you about it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

          7  because I wanted to know what type, what financial

          8  impact would that have, if something like this was

          9  enacted?

         10                 And then the other question is, what

         11  is low- to middle- income?  Maybe for you, what is

         12  low for you, is high for me. So I'm trying to figure

         13  out if we are on the same page.

         14                 MR. NIBLACK:  I'm going to cite a

         15  couple of figures off the top of my head, so I cite

         16  them with the caveat that they may be not exactly

         17  right.  The Area Median Income is, I believe, for a

         18  family of four, I believe, is in the neighborhood of

         19  fifty seven or maybe fifty- nine thousand dollars

         20  currently.

         21                 Low- income is defined as 30 percent

         22  of that.  So, I don't know if anybody has a

         23  calculated, but that is in the neighborhood of

         24  $18,000, again, for a family of four, and it is

         25  adjusted downward, depending on the family size.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you feel,

          3  you said that you don't really give your opinion one

          4  way or the other.  But not from the Independent

          5  Office, personally, how do you feel about this,

          6  talking about personally about this, but this

          7  resolution?

          8                 MR. NIBLACK:  Resolution 94?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes.

         10                 MR. NIBLACK:  Honestly, I'm not

         11  familiar enough with it to give an opinion either in

         12  my capacity as Deputy Director of the Independent

         13  Budget Office or personally.

         14                 Council member, if you would like for

         15  us to look at the fiscal impact of this and other

         16  dimensions of this, we would be happy to.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, Mr.

         18  Chair, I think we should, before we vote on

         19  something like this, we need to have more

         20  information on this Resolution 94.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  We're not dealing

         22  with that now.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Oh, we're

         24  not dealing with 94?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, we're dealing,
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          2  but the suggestion that you are presenting now,

          3  should be presented when we read to vote.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right, I

          5  understand that, all right.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Any other

          7  questions?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes, I would

          9  like to say the Chair in his infinite wisdom has

         10  already looked into that issue, by the way, Doctor

         11  Stewart, we will be discussing that.

         12                 I just want to say bringing out how

         13  important all of this hearing is, you see, we do

         14  listen, the Chair is listening, the members of this

         15  Committee are listening.  And even though something

         16  looks so good, and it looks like it is definitely

         17  going to help seniors, it could be like that apple

         18  in the Garden of Eden, and really cause a lot of

         19  problems.  And I think the Chair was alluding to

         20  that.  We're going to be looking into this, based

         21  upon the presentation that we received today.  So

         22  I'm proud of the Chair catching that right away, and

         23  this Committee looking into this. And your

         24  independence, by the way, you're answering the

         25  question, you work for the right agency.  Thank you.
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          2                 MR. NIBLACK:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Niblack.  Next one, we're moving fast like

          5  lightening, next one is Jennifer Fish from the

          6  Council of Senior Citizens Center, Jennifer.  Who is

          7  next? Next will be Clare Dockery.

          8                 I have a suggestion that we go to a

          9  three minute clock.  Okay, we're going to three

         10  minutes on the clock.

         11                 MS. FISH:  I would ask the Chair that

         12  I get three minutes on SCRIE and three minutes on

         13  Assisted Living?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Six minutes?

         15                 MS. FISH:  Yes, please, it is a very

         16  important issue, and I'm here to speak for the

         17  seniors.  Why don't I get started.

         18                 I would like to start with, I have

         19  separated the testimony into two separate things,

         20  three on SCRIE and one on Assisted Living.

         21                 Good morning, my name is Jennifer

         22  Fish, and I'm the Legal Advocate with the Council of

         23  Senior Centers and Services of New York City.  I

         24  would like to thank the Council and this

         25  Commissioner (sic) for looking into this very
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          2  important issue.  We represent 300,000 elderly

          3  people on behalf of our members, and we would like

          4  to thank City Council for your generous funding.

          5                 I'm going to skip, you can read most

          6  of my introduction.

          7                 I would like to speak specifically

          8  about the three resolutions.  First of all, I will

          9  tell you exactly how we stand on the three

         10  resolutions.

         11                 Resolution No. 143, which is the

         12  maximum, which is to raise the annual income up to

         13  $50,000.  CSCS strongly favors this bill No. A.6255

         14  and S.6918 sponsored by Assemblyman Grannis and

         15  Senator Padavan.  As we said, the $20,000 level was

         16  passed through legislation in 1996, that number is

         17  no longer an accurate assessment of need.

         18                 It is important to be clear that the

         19  language in that bill states that a sum of no more

         20  than $50,000 as may be provided by local law.  So as

         21  few people have said already today, the Council may

         22  adopt any amount up to $50,000.  Then if Council

         23  believes that this needs to be implemented into

         24  stages and cannot accept the $50,000 threshold

         25  immediately, it can choose a resolution increasing
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          2  the eligibility to $30,000, as Assemblywoman

          3  Pheffer's bill does.

          4                 So we recommend a minimum of at least

          5  $30,000, but to accept Resolution 143, because then

          6  the Council would not have to return to the State

          7  for new legislation on this issue.

          8                 Additionally, 133, we support, the

          9  maximum income level should be adjusted

         10  automatically each year to adjust for inflation.

         11  Seniors have to pay the annual increases of rent

         12  control and rent- stabilize apartments, although

         13  their incomes remain fixed.  And failing to provide

         14  for these increases in maximum eligibility level for

         15  SCRIE exacerbates the affordable housing shortage

         16  and in an already constricting housing market.

         17                 It is a critical and flexible tool

         18  that provides ongoing adjustment to change for the

         19  changing financial circumstances in seniors in New

         20  York City.

         21                 In terms of Resolution 143, which is

         22  to include prescription drugs and medical expenses,

         23  it should be excluded. And I want to call the

         24  Committee's attention to the Senior Citizens'

         25  Housing Exemption Program, which is the SCHE
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          2  Program.  It is the owners' equivalent of the

          3  Renting Program in New York City. That has a

          4  framework, which excludes from it already the

          5  definition of medical and prescription drug

          6  expenses, and there is no parity between renters and

          7  owners.  It is an unfair parity.

          8                 So first, now I just, since I think I

          9  have about 30 seconds left, I would like to - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You're doing

         11  pretty good.

         12                 MS. FISH:  Got it.  I would like to

         13  point out some really disturbing demographics.  The

         14  2000 Census reports a 5.1 increase in the 75 age and

         15  older.  It's an 18.7 percent increase in the 85 and

         16  older populations in New York City since 1990.  In

         17  the 85 and older, which is the oldest old and the

         18  most fragile and frail, is the fastest growing

         19  segment of the City populations.  And poverty rates

         20  among New York City senior citizens, it is almost 20

         21  percent.  Another 23 percent live at or near the

         22  poverty level. And a total of 43 percent live below

         23  near poverty.

         24                 And I would like to point out the

         25  poverty rates among minority elderly.  Eighty
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          2  percent of Latino seniors are below poverty in New

          3  York City.  Seventy percent of African- American

          4  seniors in New York City are under poverty.  Thirty-

          5  three percent are white, Asian elderly, 40 percent,

          6  and that doesn't even include the amount that are

          7  near poverty.

          8                 Thank you for allowing me to testify

          9  on SCRIE.  Are there any questions?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes.

         11                 MS. FISH:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes, of course.

         13  You're organization is very important, the opinion

         14  of your organization is very important to us.

         15                 MS. FISH:  We thank you for that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Now you're saying

         17  that Resolution 94, you are supporting.

         18                 MS. FISH:  I haven't testified on

         19  that yet.  I have testified only on the SCRIE so

         20  far.  They're completely separate issues and don't

         21  belong in the same hearing, Commissioner (sic), with

         22  all due respect.  With all due respect, that is the

         23  only reason why I asked for separate time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, let's do

         25  something, testify on 94.
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          2                 MS. FISH:  Okay, you got it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Wait, Mr.

          4  Chair, can I ask a question about the - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, no, let

          6  her testify on 94 and finish it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  As I said we

          9  represent the majority of Section 202 and other

         10  subsidized housing providers for the elderly in New

         11  York are concerned with building assisted living

         12  facilities.

         13                 The point of this Real Estate Tax

         14  Exemption is to allow non- profit providers to build

         15  affordable assisted living. There are so few options

         16  in New York City that I will call them non-

         17  existent, right now, for seniors.

         18                 This tool will allow non- profit

         19  providers to lower their debt service, which in turn

         20  will pass that savings onto seniors.  There is

         21  nothing that is more important than affordable

         22  housing for seniors right now, especially the frail

         23  elderly that may need assistance in this type of

         24  supportive housing.

         25                 And in fact, the 1999 Supreme Court
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          2  decision mandates that New York City and New York

          3  State accelerates the priority of building

          4  affordable assisted living in New York.  In fact, if

          5  New York State does not provide this, they're in

          6  violation of the Americans With Disability Act for

          7  unnecessarily institutionalizing persons with

          8  disabilities.  Because if New York State does not

          9  have a place to put a senior who needs assistance,

         10  they're going into an institution, and I think that

         11  we can all agree that that is not the right place

         12  for them.  It's a burden on the senior, it's a

         13  burden on their families, and it is certainly a much

         14  more financial burden to New York City.

         15                 I would like to take questions,

         16  because I would like to answer them.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, Resolution

         18  94.

         19                 MS. FISH:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Are you supporting

         21  it?

         22                 MS. FISH:  Absolutely,

         23  wholeheartedly.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.

         25  Resolution 133.
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          2                 MS. FISH:  Support.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Resolution 143.

          4                 MS. FISH:  Support.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Resolution 146.

          6                 MS. FISH:  Do not support.  The

          7  $25,000 level is not enough.  If you go with your

          8  resolution and support up to $50,000, then - -  yes,

          9  yes, Sir.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You're not

         11  supporting up to 25, you're supporting more?

         12                 MS. FISH:  Yes, absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Then you're

         14  supporting it.

         15                 MS. FISH:  We support - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You said, no.

         17  You're supporting it.

         18                 MS. FISH:  I don't choose that

         19  particular, we cannot choose that particular, we

         20  would support it, if that was our only option.  But

         21  it is not right now, there are other bills.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, let's say

         23  you have no option, this is what we're doing?

         24                 MS. FISH:  We would support it.  We

         25  would, of course, support it the way it is.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, any

          3  questions?  Yes, who was it?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  You spoke

          5  with Resolution 94, is there any fiscal impact that

          6  studies have been done to see what it is going to

          7  cost the City?

          8                 MS. FISH:  No, in fact, I would like

          9  to suggest that one is done, which I think was

         10  already talked about here with the IBO.  We feel

         11  that it would be such a small impact, because there

         12  would be, maybe, possibly, there is someone else

         13  here who could speak more to this, but there would

         14  be maybe no more than two projects that would take

         15  up on this for the year, which is not a large fiscal

         16  impact considering the amount of seniors that it

         17  would be helping, and freeing up other subsidized

         18  housing.

         19                 But we suggest that a study is done.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right,

         21  so you're saying that you think before we enact on

         22  this that studies should be done first?

         23                 MS. FISH:  I think that you can go

         24  ahead and support it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Even without
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          2  the studies?

          3                 MS. FISH:  I'm sorry.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Even without

          5  the studies?

          6                 MS. FISH:  Well I have very good

          7  reason to believe that the fiscal impact would be

          8  very small and beneficial.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Let me, once

         10  again, let me tell the members of the Committee, we

         11  have people here like the Department for the Aging,

         12  the Independent Budget Office, the Senior Citizen

         13  Council, and these are very, very instrumental and

         14  very important people.  When they support it, and

         15  they say, I'm supporting it, I'm pretty sure that

         16  they read their studies or you know, I don't see why

         17  we're going to have to go back to, you know, if they

         18  don't support it, then we hit them.  If they support

         19  it, then leave it alone, and let's move on.

         20                 Anyone else?  Recchia.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes, good

         22  morning.

         23                 MS. FISH:  Good morning.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I have a few

         25  questions for you.
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          2                 MS. FISH:  Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Now you said

          4  that if we go ahead and vote for, I believe that it

          5  is 146, the one they can take into consideration the

          6  prescriptions that they pay.

          7                 MS. FISH:  Resolution 146 is the one,

          8  I believe, that raises it to the $25,000 level.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Right, so

         10  you're for that, right?

         11                 MS. FISH:  Which one?  I think there

         12  has been some confusion with the numbers, versus

         13  what it is saying.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes, yes.

         15                 MS. FISH:  So be specific about,

         16  please.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay, let me

         18  just get over here.

         19                 MS. FISH:  It is my understanding

         20  that we support Resolution No. 143 and 133, which

         21  says that the eligibility level should be raised

         22  from $20,000 to $50,000, and also index to

         23  inflation, the Cost- of- Living- Increase.

         24                 Resolution 146 is that unreimbursed

         25  medical expenses.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Right, that

          3  is the one.

          4                 MS. FISH:  Yes, we support that,

          5  absolutely, and that is when I suggested that we

          6  should look to the SCHE program is the homeowner

          7  equivalent.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Right, that

          9  is what I want to talk - -  Mr. Chairman, you have

         10  something to say?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You're supporting

         12  the four of them.

         13                 MS. FISH:  I'm sorry.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  You're supporting

         15  the four of them, you are supporting the four

         16  resolutions?

         17                 MS. FISH:  We are, we don't support

         18  143.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Based on what?

         20                 MS. FISH:  Because we think it should

         21  be higher than raised to $25,000.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, no, here

         23  we go again.

         24                 MS. FISH:  I'm sorry, let me

         25  rephrase, you're right, you're right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  She is

          3  rejecting 143, because she feels it is not high

          4  enough.

          5                 MS. FISH:  No, no, no, that is not

          6  exactly true.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I mean, I'm

          8  totally confused over here.  Go ahead.  Wait.

          9                 You support all of these, except for

         10  the fact that when it comes to the income level, it

         11  should be raised to $50,000, yes or no?

         12                 MS. FISH:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay,

         14  beautiful, now we're all clear on that.

         15                 Now let's talk about the SCHE

         16  Program.

         17                 MS. FISH:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  All right?

         19                 MS. FISH:  Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Under the

         21  SCHE Program, do they take into consideration the

         22  prescription drugs?

         23                 MS. FISH:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Explain that

         25  to me?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2                 MS. FISH:  They have a framework,

          3  which excludes the definition of incomes, the cost

          4  of unreimbursed medical treatment and prescription.

          5  So in other words, the income level is figured after

          6  the deduction of unreimbursed medical, prescription

          7  expenses, which basically gives a more accurate

          8  portrayal of the seniors income that they can pay

          9  rent with.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay.  Now

         11  who oversees the SCHE Program?

         12                 MS. FISH:  That is the Department of

         13  Finance, from my understanding.  I could be wrong on

         14  that, but I think it is the Department of Finance.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay, so the

         16  Department of Finance overlooks the SCHE Program,

         17  and the Department of Aging does SCRIE.

         18                 MS. FISH:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay.  Now

         20  if we were able, because I understand a lot of

         21  people feel, the Department of Aging feels that this

         22  is burdensome under the SCRIE if they would have to

         23  look at all these prescription drugs and check out

         24  the claims that they're making.  Okay?  Is that

         25  correct?  I mean, the City feels that that is their
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          2  position.

          3                 MS. FISH:  I think that is what I

          4  heard this morning.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay, that

          6  is what you understood.  But you're telling me,

          7  under the SCHE Program they actually are doing this.

          8                 MS. FISH:  Yes, they are.  They are

          9  doing this, and we have talked to them about it when

         10  we were doing our testimony, an they said, that it

         11  is not, the prescription process does not hold up

         12  the process of all within the Department of Finance,

         13  because seniors can obtain a record from their

         14  insurance company doctor's pharmacy, and they

         15  already have all the records.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  So if

         17  they're not covered by insurance, and for the money

         18  that they have to lay out, - -

         19                 MS. FISH:  Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: - -  that

         21  comes into the formula.

         22                 MS. FISH:  It is left out of the

         23  formula in the SCHE Program.  In the SCRIE Program

         24  it is left in.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Right, it's
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          2  not taken into consideration, but in the SCHE

          3  Program.

          4                 MS. FISH:  Not in the SCRIE Program.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Now the SCHE

          6  Program is for- -

          7                 MS. FISH:  Owners.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Owners of?

          9                 MS. FISH:  Homes.  Just like SCRIE

         10  Program to renters of homes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay.  And

         12  SCHE Programs, I understand.  So if buildings that

         13  were Mitchell- Lama and they were going private,

         14  okay, they would be entitled to the SCHE Program.

         15                 MS. FISH:  I'm not quite sure about

         16  that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay, we

         18  will come back to that.

         19                 MS. FISH:  I'm not sure, I cannot

         20  answer that, I'm sorry.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  All right,

         22  okay, now and the Department of Finance oversees - -

         23    who did you say, because you said you spoke to

         24  somebody at the Department of Finance and you said

         25  that they said it wasn't - -
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          2                 MS. FISH:  Yes, we asked them it was

          3  a hinderance process.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Who, who did

          5  you ask?

          6                 MS. FISH:  I will get the name for

          7  you, no problem.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay.

          9                 MS. FISH:  We spoke to the

         10  administrators of the program, who were actually the

         11  ones taking the, you know, who process the

         12  applications and look at the medical records.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  So the way I

         14  understand this, this is actually being done for

         15  SCHE.

         16                 MS. FISH:  And not for SCRIE.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Right, not

         18  for SCRIE.  But it is not overburdensome for the

         19  Department of Finance, but it is going to be

         20  overburdensome for the Department of Aging.

         21                 MS. FISH:  Well, I don't think they

         22  have tried it yet.  They have not tried it yet.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  But that is

         24  what they testified to earlier.  I think this is

         25  very interesting, how it can be overburdensome to
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          2  one agency and not overburdensome to the other.

          3                 MS. FISH:  Well the one that has

          4  tried it already, finds it not burdensome.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  And could

          6  you please give me the name of the Department of

          7  Finance?

          8                 MS. FISH:  Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I would like

         10  to make that request, Mr. Chairman, that who they

         11  speak to at the Department of Finance.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  And thank

         13  you for your testimony.

         14                 MR. FISH:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  The distinguished

         16  gentleman from Brooklyn, Dilan.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Thank you for

         18  those comments, Mr. Chair.

         19                 Ms. Fish, am I correct?

         20                 MS. FISH:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I just wanted

         22  to address Resolution 146 for you, I think which is

         23  the one that seems to be of issue here.  While you,

         24  after some confusion, stated that you support this.

         25                 MS. FISH:  Wait, 146 is the
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          2  unreimbursed medical expenses.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  No, I guess -

          4   -

          5                 MS. FISH:  That is 146.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I hope I'm

          7  speaking to the right resolution, but - -

          8                 MS. FISH:  Just say which one?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  The resolution

         10  where we are supporting - -

         11                 MS. FISH:  The raise to 25,000?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Twenty- five

         13  to fifty, 143, I have the wrong reso number.  In

         14  regard to 143 you feel that the 25,000 is

         15  insufficient and you would like to see this raised

         16  to a higher level.  I guess just for my

         17  informational purposes, could you explain the

         18  benefit of the increase funding level and how it

         19  plays out to the seniors who actually receive?

         20                 MS. FISH:  The increased funding

         21  level would let many more seniors, and I think that

         22  the gentleman from IBO spoke to that it would reach

         23  about 2,200 seniors, right, about 2,200 seniors,

         24  which is a sizable number considering the amount in

         25  poverty, and that is only if it is raised to
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          2  $30,000.  So if it is raised higher, the more will

          3  be impacted.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  All right, so

          5  at 25,000, just to restate, how many seniors?

          6                 MS. FISH:  Well at 30,000 the

          7  gentleman just said 2,200.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Twenty- two

          9  hundred, okay, thank you.

         10                 MS. FISH:  If I'm correct in quoting

         11  him.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Ms. Clare Dockery.

         13                 MS. DOCKERY:  Hi, my name is Clare

         14  Dockery, and I am testifying in support of

         15  legislation to improve and expand the Senior Citizen

         16  Rent Increase Exemption.  I am speaking on behalf of

         17  JPAC, the Joint Public Affairs Committee for older

         18  adults and as a tenant advocate.  JPAC is a social

         19  action group of older adults from senior centers,

         20  union retiree groups, religious organizations, and

         21  other senior organizations throughout the

         22  Metropolitan Area. JPAC helps older persons to

         23  become active advocates for themselves.

         24                 SCRIE is a vital program that enabled

         25  many older New Yorkers to remain in their homes.
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          2  However, the $20,000 income limit to be eligible for

          3  SCRIE has not been raised in six years, even though

          4  we all know the cost of living has increased.  In

          5  addition, requiring that the rent be 33.3 percent of

          6  one's income is too much.  Most other subsidized

          7  housing requires that a family pay only 30 percent

          8  for rent.  And many folks who are eligible for SCRIE

          9  frequently have a high out- of- pocket medical and

         10  prescription drug expenses.  They often have to

         11  decide whether to pay the rent, purchase their

         12  medications or even buy food.

         13                 Disabled people encounter many of the

         14  same difficulties as older adults do.  They too,

         15  often live on fixed incomes and have very high

         16  medical costs.  Therefore, we believe that the SCRIE

         17  program should be expanded to assist disabled

         18  persons who have low incomes.

         19                 JPAC urges the Council to pass

         20  resolutions that support State Legislation to

         21  enhance and expand the SCRIE program. Specifically,

         22  JPAC asks the Council to support the following

         23  specific points found in bills presented before the

         24  State Assembly and Senate.  These points include: An

         25  increase in the income eligibility levels to
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          2  $50,000, which is A.6255C, which passed the Assembly

          3  unanimously and its companion S.6918); an annual

          4  cost of living adjustment, COLA, which is Resolution

          5  133; a decrease in the percent of income devoted to

          6  rent to 25 percent; and an extension of coverage to

          7  younger disabled people, which is A.6673B and

          8  S.6360.

          9                 I would like to conclude by thanking

         10  the Committee on Aging for providing a forum where

         11  seniors can testify.  I would also like to put in a

         12  plug for senior advocacy.  It is needed now, more

         13  than ever.

         14                 And I would like to put in a personal

         15  plug, which is me, not JPAC, for a building more

         16  assisted living facilities.  I live in rent-

         17  regulated housing and I see how folks are aging in

         18  place and we need places for them to go.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you very

         20  much.  The two of you, thank you very much.

         21                 MS. FISH:  Thank you, and I would

         22  also like to thank the Committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  All right, thank

         24  you.  Now we're going to call Anne Cunningham,

         25  President of Commander Hotel Tenants Association,
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          2  and Sydelle Knepper from the Sydelle Knepper

          3  Associate, okay.

          4                 MS. CUNNINGHAM:  Good morning,

          5  Chairperson Diaz and members of the Committee.  My

          6  name is Anne Cunningham.  I'm the President and

          7  Founder of the Commander Hotel Tenants Association,

          8  a member of SROTU, and practically every tenant

          9  association that is formed, and of many senior

         10  organizations.  And I'm also a tenant advocate for

         11  the past 24 years and continue to do so.

         12                 Now I just put my testimony together

         13  a few minutes ago, so it is going to be a little bit

         14  different than the others.

         15                 First of all, I'm not sure of all the

         16  statistics that were taken, if seniors that are

         17  apartment dwellers were also considered.  I think

         18  that is very important.

         19                 Now I am in favor of all the

         20  resolutions, particularly 143 that supports

         21  increasing the income threshold. Since the income

         22  threshold was not increased since 1996, six years is

         23  too long a wait for seniors to save their homes.

         24                 I would also like to share with you a

         25  few facts to consider.
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          2                 1.  I have, unfortunately,

          3  experienced seeing many seniors evicted in Housing

          4  Court, because they cannot afford the escalating

          5  rents, and this is really true.

          6                 2.  Health insurance, prescriptions,

          7  medical supplies and dental work, which we never

          8  mention, that is not covered by medical plans or

          9  insurance plans, should be considered as a COLA.  I,

         10  myself, paid $209 a month just for my medical

         11  insurance, not including my deductible of over $500

         12  for prescriptions.

         13                 3.  Most seniors do not have dental

         14  plans.  I know we're not talking about this, but I

         15  would like to bring it to your attention.  I,

         16  myself, cannot afford dental work, not even at the

         17  NYU Dental Clinic.  What you see are my front teeth.

         18    Okay, I am one of those people.

         19                 Now I have been talking to many

         20  seniors in the centers that I visit, and I have also

         21  found this to be true about, you know, the dental

         22  work.  So please keep this in mind.

         23                 4.  Many seniors are not

         24  knowledgeable of the SCRIE Program.  There doesn't

         25  seem to be any outreach for this program. It is sort
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          2  of hidden under the table, and therefore, they are

          3  not in the program at all.

          4                 Now there are some seniors that are

          5  eligible - - I will be off in a minute, - -  and

          6  they refuse to apply because they seem to be very

          7  proud.

          8                 5.  As of late, a good number of

          9  seniors that are eligible complain that their

         10  landlords will not accept the SCRIE Program.  I'm

         11  sure you have heard of that, that is not a new

         12  problem.

         13                 In closing, any relief given to

         14  seniors would be greatly appreciated, and I thank

         15  you all for the pleasure of participation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.

         17  Sydelle Knepper, she is testifying only on 94.

         18  Okay?

         19                 MS. KNEPPER:  I'm testifying in favor

         20  of Resolution 94.

         21                 Good morning.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Good morning.

         23                 MS. KNEPPER:  It is a pleasure to

         24  have the opportunity to speak before you.  My name

         25  is Sydelle Knepper, I'm Principal and CEO of Sydelle
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          2  Knepper Associates, it is a real estate consulting

          3  and development practice based in New York City. It

          4  specializes in affordable housing, with a special

          5  emphasis on senior and assisted living projects.

          6  Our client practice includes a significant number of

          7  institutional and not- for- profit agencies in the

          8  New York Metropolitan area.

          9                 I'm also a Board member of the New

         10  York City Council of Senior Centers and Services,

         11  New York Housing Conference, and I was a member of

         12  the Task Force that C. Virginia Fields organized to

         13  put this legislation together at the State level.

         14                 My firm has pioneered the concept of

         15  affordable senior housing with services by using

         16  such financial tools as tax credits, tax exempt

         17  bonds, Medicaid, secondary financing and Section 8.

         18  Depending on the income level of the community and

         19  the type and mix of services, we have found that

         20  these projects are highly complex and require

         21  significant resources for both development and

         22  operation.  The lower the income of the senior

         23  resident, the more difficult it is to develop and

         24  operate a building that provides housing and

         25  services, such as three meals daily, 3.5 hours of
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          2  personal care per week, transportation and weekly

          3  housekeeping and laundry service.

          4                 Let's examine this more closely.  A

          5  single, elderly person, who earns $28,000 annually

          6  through a pension, social security and some

          7  investments has, according to the standard of 30

          8  percent of income to rent, $700 a month to spend on

          9  shelter.  If he spends an additional 40 percent of

         10  his income for food, transportation, personal care

         11  and recreation, he could spend an additional $933,

         12  or a total of about $1,633 per month.

         13                 In the current New York City market,

         14  the average rate for private assisted living exceeds

         15  $2,800 per month. Therefore, for the person who

         16  earns $28,000 per year and now needs some personal

         17  care services, the choices are simply not there.

         18                 What are the key factors that can

         19  help to make senior assisted living affordable?

         20  First, we must consider what the three main

         21  components of this are, it includes development,

         22  services, and real estate operating costs.  Most of

         23  the items that comprise each of these categories

         24  don't vary by very much.

         25                 The development cost includes land,
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          2  it includes construction, it includes interest and

          3  soft costs, like architectural fees.  Really, in New

          4  York City, as you know, land is very expensive, and

          5  construction costs right now are about $138 a foot.

          6  While there are some savings by using tax exempt

          7  bond financing, the debt service, which is the cost

          8  of a mortgage, is usually very, very significant.

          9  To lowered the development cost to the project

         10  requires using tools like capital grants interest

         11  only loans and tax credits.

         12                 The cost of services includes

         13  personal care, meals, housekeeping, et cetera, and

         14  these costs also really cannot be lowered very much.

         15    They really include salaries, which are not going

         16  to be lowered.

         17                 Finally, operating expenses include

         18  maintenance management, real estate taxes, and

         19  reserves.  Again, these expenses don't vary

         20  significantly from market rate senior assisted

         21  projects to moderate- income.  A not- for- profit

         22  may have lower management fees or less of a

         23  requirement for capital returns, but the real cost

         24  of maintaining a building does not change.

         25                 The Assembly bill and its companion
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          2  bill in the Senate would make a significant

          3  difference by providing real estate tax exemption

          4  for not- for- profit corporations seeking to

          5  construct affordable assisted living.  If you think

          6  of an annual real estate cost for a building like

          7  this is $200,000 for a 100 apartment building, could

          8  be exempted, the savings would be about $2,000 per

          9  person, per resident, per year.  This is a

         10  significant amount considering that fewer than 25

         11  percent of all seniors in New York State have

         12  incomes over $25,000.

         13                 It has been raised in connection with

         14  the legislation that New York City will have to

         15  forego the revenue from the real estate taxes.  This

         16  is true, however, the reality is these projects are

         17  very difficult to develop, because of high land

         18  prices and construction costs.  I doubt that more

         19  than two would be developed every year and maybe

         20  less.

         21                 However, think of the cost of not

         22  developing these projects.  The need is still there,

         23  but without the ability to age in place, many more

         24  persons will be forced into nursing homes. This will

         25  be a much more expensive cost ultimately to New York
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          2  City.

          3                 New York City has always been in the

          4  forefront of providing leadership.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I am sorry, we

          6  have got to move.

          7                 MS. KNEPPER:  Okay, I will stop.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, Councilman,

          9  okay finish it.

         10                 MS. KNEPPER:  Finish, okay.  New York

         11  City has always been in the forefront of providing

         12  leadership and affordable housing.  The new census

         13  is going to show that there are now a more and more

         14  significant number of elderly persons in the City.

         15  As so many of its long- time residents age in place

         16  throughout all of the neighborhoods of New York

         17  City, this Council can, by passing this resolution

         18  help seniors age gracefully in place in a secure and

         19  comfortable environments.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  We are

         22  three more to go and then we will vote.  Beginning

         23  with Peter Brest, Metropolitan Council on Jewish

         24  Poverty, and Arthur Webb, Village Care, they are

         25  testifying on 94.  And also the last one would be
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          2  Karen Guccioni from Virginia Fields Office, the

          3  Borough President of Manhattan, also on 94, and then

          4  we will be done.

          5                 MR. BREST:  Good morning, and thank

          6  you for letting me testify.  My name is Peter Brest.

          7    I'm the Chief Operating Officer of the

          8  Metropolitan Council on Jewish Poverty, also known

          9  as, Met Council.  We're a 30- year- old multi-

         10  service agency providing housing and a broad range

         11  of services to low- and moderate- income families

         12  and individuals throughout the City.  We have over

         13  1,400 units of housing under management or in

         14  development, including 1,100 for the elderly.  We

         15  also offer crisis intervention, counseling, home

         16  care to the frail elderly and an array of other

         17  services.

         18                 Met Council has been involved in an

         19  effort to create affordable assisted living for many

         20  years.  Our direct experience in providing housing

         21  and services to the elderly led us to the

         22  inescapable conclusion that assisted living,

         23  affordable by seniors of moderate means, is a

         24  critical and growing unmet need in New York City.

         25  Each of the four HUD- financed Section 202 projects
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          2  that we developed has had an increasingly larger

          3  applicant pool, with almost 4,000 applicants for the

          4  most recent 120- unit building.              Similarly

          5  , in our home care and our other senior services

          6  programs, we receive many requests for help in

          7  locating affordable assisted living from individuals

          8  who simply cannot maintain their own homes, even

          9  with the assistance of family members and home

         10  attendants, but whose incomes place them above the

         11  Medicaid eligibility level.  Unfortunately, our

         12  answer to virtually all these inquiries is that

         13  quality, affordable assisted living is essentially

         14  non- existent in New York City.

         15                 There are options for elderly

         16  individuals at each end of the income spectrum:  For

         17  Medicaid- eligible individuals, there are State-

         18  approved assisted living; those with substantial

         19  incomes or assets can turn to market- rate projects

         20  whose costs can run to $5,000 per month or more.

         21                 But the retired wage earner who

         22  relies on social security, supplemented perhaps by a

         23  modest pension, there are almost no practical

         24  assisted living options in the metropolitan area.

         25                 Two years ago, Met Council was
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          2  designated by the New York City Economic Development

          3  Corporation as the developer of a 50- acre site

          4  adjacent to the Seaview Hospital on Staten Island.

          5  This project will ultimately create over 500 units

          6  of affordable, independent and assisted living.  It

          7  is our goal to set the monthly cost for assisted

          8  living at approximately $2,500, including rent, two

          9  daily meals, recreational activities and basic level

         10  of hands on personal care.

         11                 We're confident that we can hit the

         12  target of affordability that we have set for

         13  ourselves through aggressive cost- management and a

         14  creative approach to programming and staffing.

         15  However, it will clearly be a challenge to do this.

         16  Assisted living is, by definition, a labor-

         17  intensive operation that can be trimmed only so far

         18  before putting a very vulnerable population at risk,

         19  a population that may include some of our parents

         20  and, eventually some of us.  Not- for- profit

         21  organizations entering this field need every

         22  financial advantage that may be available in order

         23  to contain development cost and debt service;

         24  government property made available for development

         25  at no or low cost; low- interest tax- exempt
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          2  financing; and direct up- front development

          3  subsidies from government housing agencies.

          4                 But it is equally important that we

          5  find ways of lowering operating costs for not- for-

          6  profit assisted living. Providing real property tax

          7  exemption is a critically important part of that

          8  effort.  The State and City have granted similar tax

          9  relief to housing for other low- income vulnerable

         10  and dependent populations including the mentally

         11  ill, the homeless, and the disabled.  And, of

         12  course, property tax exemptions and abatements are

         13  given generously to market rate housing units in

         14  affluent sections of the City.  Affordable assisted

         15  living should be treated similarly.  Given the

         16  relatively low number of not- for- profit assisted

         17  living units that we can expect to be developed over

         18  the next decade, the tax revenues lost to the City

         19  from such an exemption will be relatively low.  And

         20  whatever these costs may be, they should be offset

         21  by the added revenues from the incomes of the

         22  workers who will be hired for the hundreds of new

         23  jobs created as these facilities come on line.

         24                 And I might mention, that if New York

         25  City does not do it, these projects are going to
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          2  find some other location to be developed.

          3                 There are clearly a number of

          4  important issues that should be addressed in

          5  developing a property tax- exemption program for

          6  assisted living, including maximum income and rent

          7  levels and state licensing.  However, Met Council

          8  strongly supports this legislation and City Council

          9  Resolution 94, and we commend Borough President

         10  Fields, Assemblymember Farrell and Senator Stafford

         11  for their leadership in sponsoring it.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.

         14                 MR. WEBB:  Yes, I'm Arthur Webb, the

         15  President and CEO of Village Care of New York, we

         16  are sponsors of Village Nursing Home and also the

         17  Village at 46th Street, which is a senior housing

         18  project with services.

         19                 I also want to thank and congratulate

         20  the Chairperson and the Committee for taking up this

         21  resolution, especially in its new term.  I also want

         22  to thank C. Virginia Fields for her leadership in

         23  the area of assisted living.

         24                 I'm not going to read my testimony,

         25  I'm going to go through it relatively quickly to
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          2  save some time for you to ask some questions.

          3                 First of all, I strongly urge you to

          4  pass Resolution 94 in support of the legislation in

          5  Albany.

          6                 1.  Not- for- profits are the bulwark

          7  of services in our great City and we need that kind

          8  of support.

          9                 2.  Middle- income seniors deserve

         10  the same access to services as those who are more

         11  affluent.

         12                 3.  We really should try to avoid

         13  unnecessary costs and delays for filing exemptions

         14  on a project- by- project basis.

         15                 4.  Not- for- profits need to compete

         16  in the market place in order to be competitive with

         17  the publicly traded corporations, which are

         18  spreading throughout our state.

         19                 And the last point, really is that

         20  seniors really do deserve to remain in their

         21  community as long as possible.  But for those who

         22  cannot remain at home for a variety of different

         23  reasons, need to be able to move to a level of care,

         24  a level of support that fits their needs and they

         25  can remain in their community in familiar
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          2  surroundings.  As you know, seniors are very

          3  passionate about their freedom and their

          4  independence.

          5                 And developing affordable assisted

          6  living, affordable senior housing with services is

          7  absolutely critical. Just to give you a sense, our

          8  model program on 46th Street, which is just in the

          9  beginning of filling up, we provide two meals a day,

         10  three hours of personal care a week, and we try to

         11  provide an affordable level of rent, and we have

         12  done that through the Housing Development

         13  Corporation and HPD.

         14                 Let me tell you what the impact would

         15  be if we had to pay real property tax.  It would be

         16  close to $100,000, if not more, per year.  Meaning

         17  that, essentially, for 100 persons who will be

         18  living in our setting, it would cost them $1,000 a

         19  year, essentially making this project unaffordable

         20  for the middle class in our society.

         21                 So, again, I urge your support for

         22  the resolution 94.

         23                 Let me tell you another thing, by

         24  developing this capacity, we potentially could avoid

         25  the Medicaid cost, so the cost and the loss of
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          2  revenue on the real property side, potentially could

          3  be made up in the savings on the Medicaid side.  And

          4  so one has to look at this from a broader

          5  perspective than just looking at project- by-

          6  project and see what the revenue loss would be.  You

          7  have to look at, if you do not do these, and

          8  individuals end up in, like, my nursing home, which

          9  cost $70,000 a year versus $28,000 a year in model

         10  senior housing project with services, the City

         11  expense side would go up much faster than that which

         12  would be lost by the revenue side.

         13                 Here is another reality, we're not

         14  going to see a massive proliferation of these

         15  projects until we come to grips with at least three

         16  issues.  Access to real property and real estate

         17  that the City may own, and you can help us on that.

         18  You can help us in terms of expanding the capacity

         19  of your City agencies to help facilitate the

         20  development of these, and your Committee could also

         21  work on those.

         22                 So I urge your passage of Resolution

         23  94.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you, thank

         25  you.  You have a question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Good

          3  morning.

          4                 MR. WEBB:  Good morning.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I would like

          6  to know, do you think this resolution, it says a

          7  tax- exemption for a non- profit corporations

          8  seeking to construct affordable assisted living

          9  facilities, do you think those facilities that have

         10  already been built, that are now in existence, you

         11  think they should get the same tax exemption?

         12                 MR. WEBB:  Sure, I think we have to

         13  look at the grandfathering of those.  I think with

         14  certain specifications that the Committee or the

         15  Council sets up, and each one of those projects

         16  would have to meet one of those tests, then we can

         17  grandfather individuals in.

         18                 Like for my project, we had to come

         19  to City Council to get a 32- year tax abatement.  It

         20  was a hard fought battle, but the City Council did

         21  see its way through that.  So, instead of having

         22  this done on a project- by- project basis, if you

         23  had a kind of a blanket exemption, it would be a lot

         24  easier for City Council and government to work to

         25  support these projects.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  The

          4  last testimony we have is from the Office of

          5  Virginia Fields, Manhattan Borough President, and

          6  Ms. Karen Guccioni will be representing the Borough

          7  President.

          8                 MS. GUCCIONI:  I'm speaking on behalf

          9  of C. Virginia Fields, the Manhattan Borough

         10  President.  I'm not going to read the whole

         11  testimony to expedite some time here.

         12                 I will say that we are in support of

         13  Resolutions 94, which I will go into a little bit,

         14  133 and 146.  And Virginia, on her behalf I am

         15  testifying is in opposition of Resolution 143, which

         16  she says, simply does not do enough, that is the

         17  increase of SCRIE to $25,000.

         18                 So I will go, I will skip around a

         19  little bit.  On the second page of the testimony, I

         20  would like to point out that point that Arthur Webb

         21  just made about how much money that is fiscally

         22  sound to pass Resolution 94.  And here it is

         23  written:

         24                  "Given the City's current fiscal

         25  situation, I think I should add that supporting this
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          2  resolution will result in much greater savings in

          3  governmental costs for long- term care than what

          4  would be lost in real property tax revenues.  Senior

          5  housing with services will delay the admission to

          6  nursing homes and thus reduce City monies that would

          7  be spent on Medicaid.

          8                 For example, the average cost of a

          9  nursing home in New York City is $70,000 per year,

         10  per person.  The federal government pays 50 percent

         11  of the Medicaid cost, the state pays 40, the City

         12  pays 10.  If five seniors delay entering a nursing

         13  home by five months, there will be an overall

         14  savings to the government of almost $146,000.

         15                 The cost to the City in real property

         16  tax exemptions for affordable assisted living would

         17  be $100,000, we estimate that for a 120- unit

         18  building, and each senior would have," as has been

         19  mentioned before, "the direct benefit of a reduced

         20  rent.

         21                 And in these difficult times, it is

         22  necessary to be creative in devising means to

         23  increase affordable housing for seniors.  We cannot

         24  forget that failing to do so will result in more

         25  long- term problems."
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          2                 I also want to address one of the

          3  Committee's question that I can answer, defining

          4  area median income.  I have the answer to that

          5  question.  Area median income, which Jenny Farrow's

          6  Office intends to amend to this legislation, uses a

          7  standard that will be used by the Housing Finance

          8  Administration, which is one and a half times the

          9  median area income.

         10                 The median area income for one person

         11  in New York City is in the low forties.  So one and

         12  a half times that will bring it into the low

         13  sixties.  However, when the median income for

         14  seniors is much lower than the median income for a

         15  person in general, still if you were to take a

         16  person whose income is $60,000 and they were to move

         17  down the street, the other end of Chambers Street to

         18  an assisted living facility where the cost to live

         19  there is about $4,000 a month, after taxes, if your

         20  income is about $60,000, it's about $40,000, you

         21  cannot afford to live there.  So I just wanted to

         22  point that out.

         23                 Moving along onto the SCRIE

         24  resolutions.  Virginia does support the SCRIE

         25  resolutions that pertain to cost- of- living
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          2  adjustments and including medical costs.

          3                 I wish to make a comment on the

          4  Department for the Aging's testimony about the fact

          5  that there is a State program called EPIC that takes

          6  care of medical costs.  Keep in mind that most

          7  people on EPIC still have to pay significant

          8  deductions before they are even eligible for that.

          9  So the EPIC program does not do everything, we wish

         10  it would do more, and it does not cover other

         11  medical costs.  So there are, as other people have

         12  testified, significant out- of- pocket medical costs

         13  to seniors.

         14                 Let me see, now the reason we are not

         15  supporting the income increase to $25,000 is because

         16  Virginia feels it just does not do enough.  If you

         17  were to put a cost- of- living adjustment in it now,

         18  it is almost seven years with no cost- of- living

         19  adjustments.  We actually support, and it is in the

         20  testimony, State Legislation that increases it to

         21  $30,000.

         22                 The bills that increase it to $30,000

         23  are sponsored by Audrey Pheffer and Frank Padavan.

         24  There are three parts to that bill, and it is

         25  mentioned here in the testimony.  It includes a
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          2  cost- of- living adjustment; it includes deducting

          3  medical and prescription drug costs that are spent

          4  out- of- pocket, and it includes raising it to

          5  $30,000.

          6                 And there is just one little part

          7  that I want to say here about that.  Let me see if I

          8  can find it.  Well it is in there, which is the fact

          9  if this were to pass, including the cost of- living

         10  adjustments and a basic adjustment, there would not

         11  have to be a need for continual legislation to

         12  address this need.

         13                 So I just want to thank you for the

         14  opportunity to testify today.  And if there are any

         15  questions, I would be happy to answer them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  Yes,

         17  yes, yes, we have some questions here.  You said the

         18  Borough President, Virginia Fields is not supporting

         19  Resolution 143?

         20                 MS. GUCCIONI:  I don't have the

         21  numbers in front of me with the exemptions.  She is

         22  not supporting the resolution that increases it to

         23  $25,000.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  She is not

         25  supporting it.
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          2                 MS. GUCCIONI:  Yes, and she says so

          3  right here.  It says, "I do not" - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Now let me get

          5  this straight so that the Committee could get there.

          6    These are bills that have been presented in

          7  Albany, these are not our bills.

          8                 MS. GUCCIONI:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  These bills have

         10  been presented in Albany in the Assembly and in the

         11  Senate.

         12                 MS. GUCCIONI:  That is right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  What we are doing

         14  here, members, what we are doing here is requesting

         15  the Assembly and the Senate to pass the bills.  So

         16  we, I don't think that we have the power or the

         17  tools to change anything in those bills.  We are

         18  here just requesting to approve these or don't

         19  approve it, that is what we're doing here.  So don't

         20  get, none of you get excited because this is not our

         21  bills.  This is nothing we can change, we just say

         22  approve it or don't approve it.

         23                 Now you're telling me that the

         24  Borough President of Manhattan is saying don't

         25  approve the bill?
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          2                 MS. GUCCIONI:  I believe that is what

          3  Virginia would say.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  She would say

          5  don't approve it. That means that if the bill does

          6  not get approved, if the bill does not pass in

          7  Albany senior citizens would not get any benefit,

          8  and the Borough President is saying, don't give them

          9  anything.

         10                 MS. GUCCIONI:  I'm not, I don't think

         11  that Virginia would say that there is no benefit.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, listen

         13  carefully, because this is what we're doing here.

         14  What we tried to do here is to support some bills

         15  that have been presented in Albany.  This Council,

         16  this Committee has no say in how the bill, maybe I

         17  be wrong, but this is not our bill.  We are here to

         18  say today, we are going to ask the Assembly to pass

         19  a bill, or we're going to ask the Assembly not to

         20  pass the bill, that is what we're going to do, that

         21  is all we're going to do today.  You know tell the

         22  Assembly, we want you to pass this bill, we support

         23  this bill, or we are not supporting it, that is what

         24  we're doing.

         25                 The question is that when you, yes,
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          2  we all want to get more, we all would like to get,

          3  to give more, of course, more, $50,000, $100,000.

          4  This is not up to us.  The bill says from  20 to 25,

          5  either we give this now or we don't give anything.

          6                 What is the position of the Borough

          7  President of Manhattan, if she don't get more, don't

          8  give anything.

          9                 MS. GUCCIONI:  She doesn't want

         10  25,000.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  So it is 50 or

         12  nothing?

         13                 MS. GUCCIONI:  She doesn't support

         14  it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.

         16                 MS. GUCCIONI:  I mean I cannot say

         17  anything else.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  No, no, no, let's

         19  be clear here. Supporting mean, we're going to vote

         20  on this.

         21                 MS. GUCCIONI:  I understand.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  It isn't supported

         23  because she wants more.  But we have to decide here,

         24  if we cannot get more, we don't want to support

         25  anything?  That is what we're trying to clear here.
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          2  Yes, but the bill says to $25,000.  The Borough

          3  President and also some other people testified that

          4  they would like to the bill go more than 25,000,

          5  30,000 or 50,000.

          6                 MS. GUCCIONI:  No, I understand that.

          7    I understand the distinction you're making, I do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ;  You do understand

          9  what I'm saying.

         10                 MS. GUCCIONI:  I do, I absolutely

         11  understand.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.

         13                 MS. GUCCIONI:  And all I can suggest

         14  to the Council is that there be a future hearing

         15  about, pertaining to other resolutions that might

         16  support State legislation that people, advocates

         17  here, as we have been hearing this morning, might be

         18  interested in supporting as well.

         19                 I do understand the distinction you

         20  are making.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I want to be sure

         22  that you, you know, because this is not, I want to

         23  be clear what we are voting and what we are doing.

         24                 Council Member Nelson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.
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          2  Yes, I'm all too aware of our impotency in this area

          3  in realms of EarthStat and whatever in ways of

          4  dealing with and helping our own constituency of a

          5  city of over 8 million.  I find that obnoxious,

          6  actually, that there are some people with chairs in

          7  Albany that have more cows in their district than

          8  they have people living in apartment houses, and

          9  they have the authority to tell our people that you

         10  cannot do that, you have to go to us.  But that is

         11  the frustrating part of it.

         12                 But as far as dealing with the 25,

         13  30, 50 or as the Chair spelled it out beautifully,

         14  he took almost all my words away, but not all of

         15  them, but 90 percent of what I was going to say.  It

         16  is like when I was a little boy, I wanted to be a

         17  cowboy, okay, well you know that was when I was kid

         18  and I would not have settled for anything else.  And

         19  I know it is per capita in Manhattan 25 from 20 is

         20  not the same in Brooklyn from 20 to 25, because you

         21  have $4,000 a month apartments, basically we have

         22  much less than that. So I know the $25,000 would be

         23  a tremendous help, I would hate to lose it in other

         24  words.

         25                 I would rather, I would like to come
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          2  back with the Committee and say, let's go with

          3  Pheffer and the Senator was?

          4                 MS. GUCCIONI:  Padavan.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Padavan, and

          6  come up with something higher, I think we're going

          7  to sort of like huddle in a little while anyway and

          8  see.

          9                 What my fear is that, I don't want to

         10  lose the 25,000, if we cannot get anything higher.

         11  But I certainly, I believe the Chair feels the same

         12  way and the Committee, we would like to go higher.

         13  I just wanted to add that to the frey here.

         14                 Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Mr. Dilan.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I withdraw my

         17  question, Council Member Nelson hit on the

         18  sentiments that I wanted to relay.           Thank

         19  you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  Now we

         21  have ended the public section, but before - -  okay.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I just

         23  wanted to make a comment, I think I understand where

         24  some of these objections were, is that, the change

         25  from what the current is right now is saying from

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            94

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  $20,000 to $25,000, what I think most of these other

          3  people are saying is that, it is not worth it for

          4  the costs for administrative to change that, it is

          5  not worth it unless we put it to at least $30,000 or

          6  $50,000.  And to say that you changed it from

          7  $20,000 to $25,000, the actual effort is not worth

          8  it.  And that is what I think most people are

          9  saying.

         10                 Because how much is it to administer

         11  that part of it, to raise it from 20,000, is it

         12  going to benefit that many more people, and that is

         13  what the question was asked before, how many more

         14  people will be from 20,000 to 25,000, how many more

         15  people are you going to include?  That is the

         16  question here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I think if you go

         18  to the South Bronx where I come from and you tell

         19  the seniors that they are going to included 20,000

         20  to 25,000, that will help a lot of people. I don't

         21  know here in Manhattan and Fifth Avenue how many

         22  will be helped, but in the South Bronx, from 20,000

         23  to 25,000 a lot of seniors are going to be helped.

         24                 MS. GUCCIONI:  I wish to point

         25  something out to you that was in the testimony that
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          2  I did not say, which was that Virginia testified

          3  once before on City Council Resolution to increase

          4  the SCRIE to $30,000, and that is stated here with

          5  the date in the testimony.  So I just wanted to

          6  mention that again, that this Committee has

          7  addressed this in the past.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Council Member

          9  Dilan.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Mr. Chairman,

         11  I will be brief.  I think the sentiment of this

         12  Committee is to do as much as possible.  I think if

         13  there was, I guess, a mechanism in place for us to

         14  get it increased to $30,000, I think we would like

         15  to do that.

         16                 I guess my question is, is there

         17  currently a bill in Albany that reflects the Borough

         18  President's position?

         19                 MS. GUCCIONI:  Yes, there is, and it

         20  is reflected in the testimony.  And like Council

         21  Member Nelson said, - -

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  So he touched

         23  on that.

         24                 MS. GUCCIONI: - -  there is a bill by

         25  Audrey Pheffer and Frank Padavan that includes all
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          2  three parts that reflect - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  All right, I'm

          4  doing it for clarity, for the purpose of clarity,

          5  but I just want to bring it out.  So that there is a

          6  bill that is more in line with the Borough

          7  President's position, that is correct?

          8                 MS. GUCCIONI:  Yes, yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Okay, thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.

         12                 MS. GUCCIONI:  You're welcome.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Before we go into

         14  voting, and before we end the public section, I

         15  would like to ask, as the Chairperson of this

         16  Committee, we have heard many testimony today on

         17  SCRIE.  There was one thing that I did not hear, and

         18  it was that when the law was passed, the law said

         19  that senior citizens had to be 62 years.  But the

         20  problem with that law is that the senior has to be

         21  62 years at the time of the increase.  If the senior

         22  were not 62 years at the time of the rent increase,

         23  they will never qualify. And we might say, well, why

         24  not, why not have something that said when the

         25  senior becomes 62 somewhere, somehow, somewhere they
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          2  could qualify to freeze their rent where they are at

          3  62.

          4                 So if the senior were not 62 at the

          5  time of the rent increase, they were 61 or 60,

          6  whatever, and their would be 10 years or 20 years by

          7  the next increase, those seniors would never

          8  qualify, and that is an injustice, that is an

          9  injustice.

         10                 And I have not heard anyone saying,

         11  what are we going to do to solve that injustice,

         12  because seniors have to wait. Only the privileged

         13  one, where those that were 62 at the time of the

         14  rent increase.  After that everyone has a date,

         15  until the next rent increase whenever it will be,

         16  and that is an injustice.  I just want to say that.

         17                 We are ending these public hearing.

         18  I don't know if, you have got to advise me, can I go

         19  into private section one minute, could we do that,

         20  because I don't know if we could do that? In a

         21  second session for one minute with my members before

         22  we come out and vote.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes, that is

         24  a good idea.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Can we do that?
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          2  Okay.  We're going to go into private 5 minutes, and

          3  then we will come back to vote.

          4                 (Recess taken).

          5                 Ladies and gentlemen, members of the

          6  senior citizen Committee, let me say the person we

          7  have is the Honorable Erik Martin- Dilan from

          8  Brooklyn; the Honorable Member Dr. Kendall Stewart;

          9  the Honorable Member Mr. Michael Nelson; and the

         10  Honorable Member Gallagher.  So we have a quorum of

         11  our Committee.  Missing is, who is missing?

         12  Recchia, but he was here, he just left, and Foster,

         13  so only two absent.

         14                 We are going to take a vote on those

         15  four resolutions, and I'm going to ask the members

         16  of the Committee to tell me how they're going to

         17  vote on:

         18                 Resolution 94, which calls to the

         19  Council to support State Legislation to adopt

         20  Assembly Bill 4886 and its companion Senate Bill

         21  2614, which will amend Section 422(1)(a) of the Real

         22  Property Tax Law in relation to providing real

         23  property tax exemptions to the not- for- profit

         24  corporations seeking to construct affordable

         25  assisted living facility for seniors with low- to
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          2  middle- incomes.

          3                 So I will go and roll call the

          4  members on that resolution.

          5                 Mr. Martin- Dilan.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  On Resolution

          7  94, I vote yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Doctor Kendall

          9  Stewart.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  On Reso. 94,

         11  I vote yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Doctor, Michael

         13  Nelson.  I call you Doctor already.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  That is okay,

         15  my mother wanted me to be one.  I vote aye, and I

         16  request to be put on as prime sponsor too.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.  Council

         18  Member Gallagher.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  I vote aye

         20  on Reso. 94.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Thank you.  Can

         22  the Chairman vote, or does the Chairman have to

         23  abstain?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  You vote.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  The Chairman also
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          2  vote aye in that resolution.

          3                 Now we go to Resolution - -

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Mr.

          5  Chairman, could I be put on as prime sponsor of that

          6  bill?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay.  On

          8  Resolution No. 133, is calling on the State

          9  Legislature and the Governor to enact resolution to

         10  amend the Real Property Tax Law in relation to

         11  indexing to inflation the maximum income allowed for

         12  persons occupying rental units to be eligible for

         13  the Senior Citizens Rent Increase Exemption, SCRIE.

         14                 I'm going to call the roll call on

         15  that one too, and I'm going to start by Council

         16  Member Martin- Dilan.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTIN- DILAN:  On

         18  Reso. 133, I vote yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Doctor Kendall

         20  Stewart.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I vote yes

         22  on Reso. 133.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Michael Nelson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Gallagher.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Aye.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Me, Diaz also vote

          4  aye on that resolution.

          5                 Now Resolution No. 143, to support

          6  State Legislature bills, Assembly Bill 4227 and its

          7  companion Senate Bill 2334, to amend the Real

          8  Property Tax Law in relation to increasing the

          9  allowable maximum income of persons occupying rental

         10  units otherwise eligible for tax abatement that

         11  means to increase the limit from 20,000 to 25,000.

         12                 I'm going to start the roll call, and

         13  I'm going to start with, to my right, Council Member

         14  Gallagher.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Mr.

         16  Chairman, may I be excused to explain my vote?  I

         17  would be voting aye on Reso. 143 in relation to

         18  increasing the levels from 20 to 25 thousand.  And

         19  after listening to the testimony of many folks here

         20  today, I understand that the Committee, in its

         21  discussions has indicated that they will be looking

         22  to at other legislation in the future in terms of

         23  increasing that limit.

         24                 But the bill before us and the

         25  Resolution before us indicates a $5,000 increase,
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          2  which I think can be beneficial to many seniors

          3  throughout the City.  And because of that increase

          4  and because of increasing eligibility and increasing

          5  participation, I certainly and enthusiastically vote

          6  aye.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Mr. Dilan.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Yes, I agree

          9  with Council Member Gallagher's statements.  I also

         10  just want to send a message that we should, in the

         11  near future, try to do as much as possible for

         12  seniors throughout the entire City.

         13                 But to Reso. 143 as it is proposed

         14  now, I vote yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Doctor Stewart.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I vote yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Nelson.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  May I be

         19  excused to explain my vote?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I'm proud to

         22  be the sponsor, the prime sponsor of this

         23  legislation or this Reso., I'm sorry. And I would

         24  say ditto to everything said before me, especially

         25  from Councilman Gallagher.  Reserving, of course, to
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          2  come out, if it goes higher.  But I know that the

          3  seniors in my district have come to me so often and

          4  say, if it was raised $1,000, it would make them

          5  eligible.  Surely the $5,000 would encompass an

          6  awful lot of these seniors, and I know they would be

          7  thrilled and delighted, if they received that, and

          8  certainly happier if we did get more than that.

          9                 So I delightedly vote aye.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  I also vote yes on

         11  that Resolution.

         12                 And now the final one, Resolution

         13  146, calling to the Assembly to pass Bill 607, which

         14  would amend the Real Property Tax Law to exclude

         15  from the definition of income all medical and

         16  prescription drug expenses actually paid by senior

         17  citizens which were not reimbursed or paid by

         18  insurance for purposes of determining eligibility

         19  for the Senior Citizen Rent Increase Exemption, that

         20  means the out- of- pocket money that seniors pay.

         21                 I'm going to do a roll call on that

         22  one too.  And I'm going to start with  - -  Yes,

         23  tell me what you want to do?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Mr. Chair, I

         25  would like to table this, I move a motion to table
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          2  this Reso. And cancel the vote today.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Council Member

          4  Kendall Stewart is calling for this Committee to

          5  table that motion, Resolution 146.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  And I

          7  second the motion.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And it was second

          9  by Council Member Gallagher.

         10                 I'm just going to open for question

         11  or discussion on this Resolution.  If any one of the

         12  member have anything to comment on this, before I

         13  take the vote?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  No, just that

         15  I believe it needs to be fine tuned, somewhat.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Okay, all in

         17  favor, I want to call a roll call on that.  Mr.

         18  Dilan, how do you vote?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I vote to

         20  table.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Mr. Kendall

         22  Stewart.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I vote to

         24  table.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Mr. Gallagher.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  To table,

          3  Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  Mr. Nelson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye, table.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DIAZ:  And I also vote to

          7  table.  And so this concludes our meeting.  Ladies

          8  and gentlemen, thank you very much.  This meeting is

          9  adjourned.  We got to sign it.

         10                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:20 p.m.)

         11                 (The following testimony was read

         12  into the record.)

         13

         14  Testimony of:

         15  Jennifer Fish

         16  Legal Advocate

         17  Council of Senior Centers and Services of New York

         18  City, Inc.

         19  (on Resolution No. 94)

         20

         21                 Good morning, my name is Jennifer

         22  Fish and I am the Legal Advocate with the Council of

         23  Senior Centers and Services of New York City (CSCS).

         24    First, on behalf of CSCS, its member agencies, and

         25  the 300,000 elderly people they serve, we would like
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          2  to thank the City Council for their generous funding

          3  and the work of this Committee on Aging.

          4                 Council of Senior Centers and

          5  Services of New York City, Inc., CSCS, and its

          6  member agencies, which include the majority of

          7  Section 202 and other subsidized housing providers

          8  for the elderly in New York, are concerned with

          9  funding, building and operating senior housing with

         10  services, (a.k.a. Assisted living). Additionally,

         11  CSCS is the central organization in New York City

         12  representing 265 member agencies providing

         13  community- based services for over 300,000 older New

         14  Yorkers.  Services provided through our member

         15  agencies include congregate and home- delivered

         16  meals, housing, case management, home care, multi-

         17  service senior centers, social adult day services,

         18  transportation, Naturally Occurring Retirement

         19  Communities (NORC's), information and referral,

         20  assistance for immigrants, computerized benefits

         21  program, educational and cultural activities,

         22  counseling, health promotion programs, legal

         23  services, opportunities for volunteerism, and

         24  intergenerational programs.

         25                 THE IMPORTANCE OF THE REAL ESTATE TAX
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          2  EXEMPTION

          3                 I appreciate the opportunity to

          4  present testimony regarding Resolution Number 94,

          5  which calls upon the New York State Legislature to

          6  adopt Assembly Bill A.4886 and its companion bill,

          7  S.2614, which would amend Section 422(1)(a) of the

          8  Real Property Tax Law to provide real property tax

          9  exemptions to not- for- profit corporations seeking

         10  to construct affordable assisted living facilities

         11  for seniors with low to middle incomes.  We support

         12  the efforts of Manhattan Borough President Virginia

         13  Fields and the City Council's Committee on Aging to

         14  call upon the state legislature to amend the New

         15  York State Real Property Tax Law through Resolution

         16  Number 94.  The Real Property Tax Law should be

         17  amended to include a real property tax exemption for

         18  non- profit corporations to provide senior housing

         19  with services.

         20                 It is the mission of many not- for-

         21  profit providers to build affordable assisted living

         22  facilities.  However every step of development of an

         23  assisted living facility is prohibitively expensive

         24  for providers; the costs of construction,

         25  maintenance and operation.  This type of tax

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            108

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  exemption is crucial as a tool to bring the costs

          3  down for the development of affordable assisted

          4  living facilities.

          5                 A tax exemption for not- for- profit

          6  developers of assisted living will promote the

          7  development of affordable assisted living for the

          8  elderly of New York.  It will have this result

          9  because the exemption of these taxes will decrease

         10  the amount of debt to the provider, which in turn,

         11  increases the monthly rate for the senior residents.

         12    In other words, the not- for- profit provider will

         13  pass the savings along to the seniors.  This is

         14  important because currently, assisted living is

         15  financially beyond the reach of most elderly New

         16  Yorkers.  Therefore the real property tax exemption

         17  is crucial for not- for- profit corporations seeking

         18  to construct affordable assisted living facilities

         19  for seniors who are near poor.

         20                 The legislation proposing real estate

         21  property tax exemptions for non- profit assisted

         22  living housing providers introduced by

         23  Assemblymember Herman Farrell and Senator Ronald

         24  Stafford, A.04886/S.02614, should be passed to

         25  promote the development of affordable assisted
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          2  living.

          3                 THE IMPORTANCE OF ASSISTED LIVING AND

          4  AGING IN PLACE

          5                 Assisted living facilities are able

          6  to combine a homelike setting with a varying array

          7  of on- site services for seniors such as meal

          8  preparation, personal care services, and

          9  housekeeping.  Assisted living serves an important

         10  function by allowing seniors to age in their

         11  community and to maintain their independence.  It is

         12  designed to provide an independent, but safe

         13  environment that may postpone or even prevent

         14  institutionalized care.

         15                 The economic reality of a growing

         16  number of elderly is not positive.  Due to factors

         17  such as the increasing number of older people living

         18  below the poverty level, shortage of affordable

         19  housing, and the rising costs of medical treatment,

         20  the City must provide seniors with options to allow

         21  them to age in place.  In fact, New York State has

         22  an obligation to do so.  The 1999 Supreme Court

         23  decision, Olmstead v. L.C. Accelerates the priority

         24  of building affordable assisted living in New York.

         25  The Court in Olmstead held that the Americans with
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          2  Disabilities Act, ADA, prohibits states from

          3  unnecessarily institutionalizing persons with

          4  disabilities.  Assisted living offers an opportunity

          5  for New York State to uphold the Olmstead decision

          6  by preventing institutionalization and providing

          7  seniors with supportive housing if released from a

          8  nursing home.  New York must plan and provide money

          9  for building assisted living facilities so that

         10  those seniors in need of assistance can remain in

         11  the community.  Expanding government subsidies to

         12  lower construction costs that can aid in providing

         13  affordable assisted living facilities and assist New

         14  York State in complying with the Olmstead decision.

         15  Please visit our web site for more information on

         16  the Olmstead decision, www.cscs ny.org.

         17                 THE LACK OF AFFORDABLE ASSISTED

         18  LIVING IN NEW YORK CITY

         19                 Even though assisted living

         20  facilities are crucial to the continuum of care for

         21  the elderly, there are not nearly enough affordable

         22  assisted living facilities available to meet the

         23  ever- increasing demand in New York.  Assisted

         24  living facilities are rare for those seniors at or

         25  below the Medicaid income levels ($0 7,500 per
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          2  year).  Similarly, for the populations of seniors

          3  that are "near poor," (with incomes from $7,501-

          4  $18,700 per year) and "low- moderate" income seniors

          5  (with incomes from $18,701- $29,900 per year),

          6  affordable assisted living facilities are almost non

          7  existent.

          8                 The near- poor and low- moderate

          9  income seniors have limited options because they are

         10  considered above the financial limit to qualify for

         11  public assistance yet they still cannot afford the

         12  market- rate of private pay assisted living

         13  facilities.  The average market rate for private pay

         14  facilities is about $2,800 to $4,000 per month

         15  ($33,600- $48,000 per year).  Fewer than 25 percent

         16  of the seniors in New York State have annual incomes

         17  of over $25,000.   This means that three out of four

         18  of the elderly in New York cannot afford to pay for

         19  private assisted living facilities, even if they

         20  applied their total income toward the monthly rent

         21  and services payment.

         22                 The market has become saturated with

         23  expensive private pay facilities that very few

         24  seniors can afford.  Due to the increasing number of

         25  seniors on a fixed income, it is critical that New

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            112

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  York State assists in the development of affordable

          3  assisted living facilities for near- poor and low-,

          4  moderate- income seniors.  The lack of affordable

          5  assisted living is forcing seniors that need

          6  assistance to struggle alone or, alternatively,

          7  forced into a nursing home prematurely.

          8                 DEMOGRAPHICS

          9                 According to New York State Office

         10  for the Aging and the 1997 United States Census

         11  projections, the size of the elderly population in

         12  New York State will skyrocket over the next 10

         13  years. Specifically, DFTA reports that the number of

         14  elderly women 85 and over has increased by 15

         15  percent since 1990.  Many of these elderly will

         16  continue to struggle to make ends meet.

         17                 According to United States Census

         18  Bureau 2001 poverty thresholds, a person aged 65

         19  years and over is considered in poverty if their

         20  income is below $8,494.  According to DFTA, 42

         21  percent of all elderly living alone have incomes

         22  below the poverty level, they are considered the

         23  largest group in poverty.  Moreover, the latest

         24  available census figures for New York State found

         25  that over 25 percent of the elderly living in
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          2  households live by themselves and nearly all of them

          3  are women.  The number has grown over the past

          4  decade as people are living longer.  DFTA reports

          5  that there are four major senior groups in poverty;

          6  age 75 and older, women, minorities, and those

          7  elderly who live alone. Minority elderly comprise 47

          8  percent of the elderly population, up from 35

          9  percent in the 1990 census.  Poverty rates and near

         10  poverty rates are glaring, 80 percent Latino: 70

         11  percent African- American; 33 percent White.  Asian

         12  elderly poverty rate is about 40 percent.

         13                 Nationally, HUD reports a loss of 5

         14  percent, or 372,000 affordable rental units between

         15  1990 and 1999.  Similarly, New Yorkers are suffering

         16  from the worst housing shortage in decades

         17  accompanied by soaring prices.  The waiting list for

         18  public housing is above 100,000 families and the

         19  list for rent vouchers is over 200,000.  Typically,

         20  shelters take in 5,000 families and 7,000 people per

         21  night.  Additionally, residents in HUD- owned or

         22  subsidized properties are growing older.  The

         23  average age of older persons living in Section 202

         24  housing, HUD's largest elderly housing program, has

         25  risen from 72 in 1983 to 75 in 1999, with 20 percent
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          2  being 80 or older.

          3                 Although poverty is a huge problem

          4  among the elderly, even those above poverty

          5  guidelines may have insufficient income.  People

          6  falling in this range are often referred to as the

          7   "near- poor".  In 1999, the adjusted median income

          8  for one- person households in New York City was

          9  $10,451, only 27 percent above poverty.  Nearly two

         10  million older New Yorkers, which are 65 percent of

         11  the state's elderly population, have incomes below

         12  $14,999, according to 1997 New York State census

         13  estimates.  Almost half, 47 percent, have incomes

         14  below $10,000.  Another 17 percent age sixty and

         15  over, according to the 1990 census, have incomes

         16  between $14,999- $24,999.  Many seniors subsist just

         17  above the poverty line and can barely afford the

         18  required necessities to survive such as food,

         19  medication, and utilities.

         20                 CONCLUSION

         21                 Assisted living enables seniors to

         22  remain in a homelike setting with maximum

         23  independence while providing some necessary

         24  assistance.  Only one out of four seniors, however,

         25  can afford the extremely high cost of assisted
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          2  living residences.  Not for- profit developers must

          3  be given the tools to reduce their debt and pass

          4  that savings on to seniors.  To ensure affordable

          5  assisted living facilities, the costs must be

          6  lowered.  A cornerstone to lowering costs is

          7  amending the Real Property Tax Law Section 422(1)(c)

          8  to include a real estate tax exemption for not- for-

          9  profit assisted living residences.

         10

         11  Testimony of:

         12  Jennifer Fish

         13  Legal Advocate

         14  Council of Senior Centers and Services of New York

         15  City, Inc.

         16  (Testimony on SCRIE, Resolutions 133, 143, 146.)

         17

         18                 Good morning.  My name is Jennifer

         19  Fish and I am the Legal Advocate for the Council of

         20  Senior Centers and Services of New York City (CSCS).

         21    First, on behalf of CSCS, its member agencies and

         22  the 300,000 elderly people they serve, we would like

         23  to thank the City Council for their generous funding

         24  and the work of this Committee on Aging.

         25                 CSCS is the central organization in
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          2  New York City representing 265 member agencies

          3  providing community- based services for 300,000

          4  older New Yorkers.  Services provided through our

          5  member agencies include congregate and home-

          6  delivered meals, housing, case management, home

          7  care, multi- service senior centers, social adult

          8  day services, transportation, Naturally Occurring

          9  Retirement Communities (NORC's), information and

         10  referral, assistance for immigrants, computerized

         11  benefits program, educational and cultural

         12  activities, counseling, health promotion programs,

         13  legal services, opportunities for volunteerism, and

         14  intergenerational programs.

         15                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         16  present testimony regarding the beneficial program

         17  for seniors, the Senior Citizen Rent Increase

         18  Exemption Program, known as "SCRIE" and commend the

         19  New York City Council for initiating the focus on

         20  expansion of the SCRIE program.

         21                 We support the efforts of the City

         22  Council's Committee on Aging to call upon the state

         23  legislature to amend the New York State Real

         24  Property Tax Code to allow for expansion of the

         25  SCRIE program through Resolution Numbers 133 and
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          2  146.

          3                 It is our understanding that if

          4  included in state legislation, the New York City

          5  Council will have the ability to enact local

          6  legislation giving needed expansion to the New York

          7  City SCRIE Program.

          8                 We do not, however, support

          9  Resolution Number 143. Currently, there are two

         10  bills pending in the state legislature that increase

         11  the income eligibility to $30,000 and $50,000.

         12  Twenty five thousand dollars is not compatible with

         13  the needs of the senior population nor is it

         14  reflective of what is happening at the state level.

         15                 SCRIE is the New York City program

         16  that was established in 1970 to arm certain older

         17  New Yorkers in the battle to remain in affordable

         18  housing.  For those seniors eligible for SCRIE, the

         19  City of New York will pay the difference between the

         20  increase of rent and the amount the senior citizen

         21  pays at the time of application to the program.

         22  Currently, the program is available only for those

         23  living in rent controlled or rent stabilized

         24  apartments and certain residential hotel units.  To

         25  be eligible, the senior's income cannot exceed
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          2  $20,000 annually and the senior must be paying a

          3  minimum of one- third of their monthly income on

          4  rent.  The Department For the Aging (DFTA) has

          5  simplified the application form and expedited the

          6  time it takes to get seniors on SCRIE.

          7                 Our recommendations today are given

          8  with the intention of expanding SCRIE so that more

          9  seniors can benefit from the program.

         10                 THE IMPORTANCE OF AGING IN PLACE

         11                 Due to factors such as the increasing

         12  number of older people living below the poverty

         13  level, shortage of affordable housing, and the

         14  rising costs of medical treatment, seniors need to

         15  have the ability to remain in their own homes during

         16  the retirement years.  If given a choice, the

         17  elderly wish to remain in their communities.  This

         18  phenomenon affects seniors across all economic

         19  lines.

         20                 The SCRIE programs assists seniors in

         21  keeping their homes affordable and to "age in

         22  place."  Therefore, these programs provide an

         23  effective way for the elderly who seek to remain in

         24  their communities to age with dignity.  Aging in

         25  place not only provides the comfort and security of
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          2  familiar surroundings to the older person, but it

          3  also provides the senior with the necessary means to

          4  remain independent.

          5                 The concept of aging in place is good

          6  for New York City as well.  It not only eases the

          7  demand for the federally funded Section 202 housing,

          8  but it allows communities to remain in tact by no

          9  longer being stripped of their valuable tax paying

         10  senior members.  Additionally, it promotes the

         11  retention of the long- term community relationships

         12  that have been established over a lifetime and a

         13  continuum of care that, under current law, New York

         14  State must provide older New Yorkers.

         15                 DEMOGRAPHICS

         16                 There are 1.3 million people over the

         17  age of 60.

         18                 In 2006, baby boomers will begin to

         19  turn 60.

         20                 The 2000 census reports a 5.1 percent

         21  increase in the 75 plus and 18.7 percent increase in

         22  the 85 plus populations in NYC since 1990.  The 85

         23  plus age group is the fastest growing segment of the

         24  City's population.

         25                 Minority elderly comprise 47 percent
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          2  of the elderly population, up from 35 percent in the

          3  1990 census.

          4                 Poverty rates among New York's senior

          5  citizens, almost 20 percent, is about double the

          6  national rate.  Another 23 percent live at or near

          7  poverty.  A total of 43 percent live below or near

          8  poverty.

          9                 Poverty and near poverty rates are

         10  glaring- 80 percent Latino; 70 percent African-

         11  American; 33 percent White. Asian elderly poverty

         12  rate is about 40 percent.

         13                 According to DFTA, since 42 percent

         14  of all elderly living alone have incomes below the

         15  poverty level they are considered the largest group

         16  in poverty.  Moreover, the latest available census

         17  figures for New York State found that over 25

         18  percent of the elderly living in households live by

         19  themselves and nearly all of them are women.  The

         20  number has grown over the past decade as people are

         21  living longer.  DFTA reports that there are four

         22  major senior groups in poverty: Age 75 and older,

         23  women, minorities, and those elderly who live alone.

         24                 Nationally, HUD reports a loss of 5

         25  percent, or 372,000 affordable rental units between
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          2  1990 and 1999.  Similarly, New Yorkers are suffering

          3  from the worst housing shortage in decades

          4  accompanied by soaring prices.  The waiting list for

          5  public housing is above 100,000 families and the

          6  list for rent vouchers is over 200,000.  Typically,

          7  shelters take in 5,000 families and 7,000 people per

          8  night.

          9                 The federal poverty threshold for a

         10  single person aged 65 is $8,350.  However, even

         11  those above poverty guidelines may have insufficient

         12  income.  In 1999, the adjusted median income for

         13  one- person households in New York City was $10,451

         14  and $14,125 for a couple, a low fixed income close

         15  to poverty.  Nearly two million older New Yorkers,

         16  which are 65 percent of the state's elderly

         17  population, have incomes below $14,999, according to

         18  1997 New York State census estimates.  Almost half,

         19  47 percent, have incomes below $10,000.  Another 17

         20  percent, or 523 people age sixty and over, according

         21  to the 1990 census, have incomes between $14,999-

         22  $24,999.  Many seniors subsist just above the

         23  poverty line and can barely afford the required

         24  necessities to survive such as food, medication, and

         25  utilities.
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          2                 FINDINGS:

          3                 I.  THE ELIGIBILITY LEVEL SHOULD BE

          4  RAISED FROM $20,000 TO $50,000 AND INDEXED TO

          5  INFLATION (Resolution Nos. 143 and 133).

          6                 The maximum income eligibility level

          7  for SCRIE is $20,000.  The level should be raised to

          8  include those seniors with annual income of up to

          9  $50,000.  CSCS strongly favors bill number

         10  A.6255/S.6918 sponsored by Assemblyman Grannis and

         11  Senator Padavan. The $20,000 level was passed

         12  through legislation in 1996.  That number is no

         13  longer an accurate assessment of need as more and

         14  more seniors are finding that their incomes are

         15  being increasingly consumed by rent and medical

         16  expenses, leaving them less able to spend on food,

         17  medical care, transportation, or other necessities.

         18  Additionally, with the expiration of Mitchell- Lama

         19  subsidies, broadening SCRIE eligibility is more

         20  important than ever.

         21                 It is important to be clear that the

         22  language in bill A.6255/S.6918 states a "sum not

         23  more than FIFTY thousand dollars AS MAY BE PROVIDED

         24  by the local law, ordinance, or resolution adopted

         25  pursuant to this section."  It is our understanding
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          2  that if the State passes a bill with a $50,000

          3  eligibility threshold, the City Council may adopt

          4  any amount up to $50,000.  If the City Council

          5  believes this can be implemented in stages, City

          6  Council is not required to adopt a $50,000 threshold

          7  immediately.  Instead, if the City Council so

          8  chooses, it may adopt a resolution increasing the

          9  eligibility to $30,000, as Assemblywoman Pheffer's

         10  bill (A.8514) and Senator Padavan's SCRIE bill

         11  (S.5146) suggests, this year.  We recommend a

         12  minimum of $30,000.  The City Council would not,

         13  however, have to return to the State for new

         14  legislation to increase the eligibility to $50,000

         15  when it becomes essential given New York City's

         16  soaring housing costs.  The New York City

         17  Independent Budget Office reported in 2001 that

         18  raising the income eligibility ceiling to $50,000

         19  adds only a relatively small number of senior

         20  households, approximately, 3,200.

         21                 Additionally, this maximum income

         22  level should be increased automatically each year to

         23  adjust for inflation.  Seniors must pay the annual

         24  increases of rent control and rent stabilized

         25  apartments, although their incomes remain fixed.  To
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          2  address this issue, the maximum eligibility level of

          3  SCRIE should be indexed in relation to inflation.

          4  Failing to provide for sufficient increases in the

          5  maximum eligibility level for SCRIE based upon an

          6  index for inflation will exacerbate the affordable

          7  housing shortage for seniors and leave low income

          8  seniors stranded in an already constricted housing

          9  market.  Indexing the maximum income eligibility

         10  level is a critical and flexible tool that provides

         11  ongoing adjustment to account for the changing

         12  financial circumstances of seniors in New York City.

         13                 II.  UNREIMBURSED MEDICAL AND

         14  PRESCRIPTION DRUG EXPENSES SHOULD BE EXCLUDED FROM

         15  THE SCRIE DEFINITION OF INCOME TO DETERMINE

         16  ELIGIBILITY (Resolution No.146).

         17                 All medical and prescription drug

         18  expenses actually paid by the senior citizen which

         19  are not reimbursed or paid for by insurance should

         20  be excluded from the definition of income to

         21  determine the participant's disposable after- tax

         22  income.  Under the SCRIE program, the maximum amount

         23  of disposable income that a senior may have to be

         24  eligible for the program is $20,000 per year. The

         25  definition of "disposable" income currently includes
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          2  all money that is spent on medical and prescription

          3  drug expenses.   This definition is inaccurate and

          4  unfair.

          5                 In many cases, the amount that the

          6  senior has over the $20,000 income eligibility level

          7  is not disposable to the senior and it is being

          8  spent on medical care.  Medical out- of pocket

          9  expenses to seniors average $2,430 per year (19

         10  percent), and this number continues to rise.  This

         11  does not include the cost for long- term care,

         12  especially for those above the Medicaid level.

         13  (Medicaid only pays 40 percent of all long- term

         14  care).  The average senior now spends approximately

         15  $1,200 per year on prescription drugs.  Moreover,

         16  this number has nearly doubled since 1992, when

         17  seniors paid $560 per year.  By year 2010, seniors

         18  are expected to spend $2,810 per year.

         19                 For the purpose of the SCRIE

         20  determination of income, if a senior has an income

         21  of, for example, $21,200 per year, she is not

         22  eligible for the exemption.  However, she should be

         23  eligible because the $1,200 overage is not

         24  disposable; it is most likely going to be used for

         25  medical care or prescription drugs.  Since
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          2  approximately 80 percent of retirees use a

          3  prescription drug everyday, this is a common

          4  occurrence.

          5                 Thus, many elderly individuals must

          6  make the unfortunate choice between purchasing

          7  necessary medications or paying their rent.  To

          8  address this problem, the DFTA SCRIE program should

          9  take the lead from the Department of Finance who

         10  administers the Senior Citizen Housing Exemption

         11  Program (SCHE) and look to the Senior Citizen

         12  Property Exemption framework which excludes from the

         13  definition of income the costs of unreimbursed

         14  medical treatment and prescriptions.  In other

         15  words, the income level is figured after the

         16  deduction of unreimbursed medical and prescription

         17  expenses, which gives a more accurate portrayal of

         18  the senior's disposable income.  Moreover, it is our

         19  understanding that the process of documenting the

         20  medical and prescription expenses has not hindered

         21  the processing of the SCHE applications because

         22  seniors can obtain a record from their insurance

         23  company, doctors or pharmacy of their unreimbursed

         24  medical and prescription costs.

         25                 III.  A THIRD PARTY SHOULD BE
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          2  NOTIFIED BEFORE ANY SENIOR'S ELIGIBILITY IS

          3  TERMINATED FROM SCRIE, WHETHER OR NOT THEY HAVE A

          4  DESIGNATED THIRD PARTY.

          5                 The senior should not be the only

          6  person contacted when their eligibility is in

          7  jeopardy at the time of renewal.  It is our

          8  understanding that to remain eligible for SCRIE, the

          9  benefits must be renewed every two years, unless the

         10  tenant has signed a one- year lease, then the

         11  exemption must be renewed each year when the lease

         12  expires.  The Department For The Aging (DFTA) sends

         13  a SCRIE Renewal Application before the lease expires

         14  and the process consists of filling out the

         15  requested information and attaching supporting

         16  documents.  If the senior is delinquent in returning

         17  the renewal, it should become standard procedure for

         18  DFTA to contact a third party before that senior

         19  loses his benefit.

         20                 There are times when older adults

         21  will not have the capacity to return the renewal or

         22  understand the consequences of the lack of response.

         23    This misunderstanding could result in a dire

         24  financial outcome.  If there is a failure to

         25  recertify, termination of the SCRIE benefit results

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            128

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  and the senior must then reapply. Unfortunately, if

          3  they do not reapply until after they experience a

          4  second rent increase, their contribution base will

          5  be set at the increased level, just because they did

          6  not have the capacity to renew.  This whole process

          7  causes much anxiety for seniors who fear eviction if

          8  they cannot pay their rent.

          9                 This lack of advocacy in the past has

         10  caused certain seniors to end up paying more than

         11  they should because they lost their eligibility when

         12  their applications expired.  For example, in 1996,

         13  an older couple from the Bronx received the SCRIE

         14  exemption. In 1997, due to a lack of understanding

         15  of the process, they missed the deadline for SCRIE

         16  renewal and lost their exemption.  They ended up

         17  paying, much to their financial despair, the full

         18  increased amount of rent without the SCRIE benefit

         19  for the year. Then in 1998, after another rent

         20  increase, a social worker realized the situation and

         21  appealed the case.  Even though the couple won the

         22  appeal, the rent was rolled back only to the 1997

         23  rent level, not the 1996 level.

         24                 One solution to resolving this

         25  problem is the implementation of mandatory third
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          2  party notification, not just optional third party

          3  notification.  The senior should not be the only

          4  person contacted when the eligibility is in

          5  jeopardy.  On the SCRIE application, the senior

          6  already has the option to designate a third party to

          7  assist in the managing of the SCRIE affairs that

          8   "may" be contacted.  This is not enough.

          9  Considering the frailty of the population at hand,

         10  the third party notification should become standard

         11  procedure by DFTA before eligibility is terminated.

         12  If the senior does not have a third party to

         13  contact, a default system should be set up where a

         14  local case manager or social worker is contacted to

         15  follow up with the senior.

         16                 For example, it is our understanding

         17  that Con Edison, through their outreach program

         18  called Project Concern, is determined not to

         19  interrupt service to an elderly person until

         20  appropriate follow- up occurs.  If the senior

         21  designates no third party contact, it is their

         22  standard procedure to work with DFTA to alert a

         23  local social service agency or senior center to

         24  check in with the senior.  It should follow then,

         25  that the seniors should expect the same level of
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          2  back up from DFTA when involved with the SCRIE

          3  program.

          4                 IV.  SENIOR'S RENT SHOULD BE FROZEN

          5  AT ONE- THIRD OF THEIR MONTHLY INCOME.

          6                 The level of the senior contribution

          7  to rent should not exceed one- third of a senior's

          8  monthly income.  The SCRIE program should be

          9  expanded to uniformly pay the difference between the

         10  actual rent and one- third of the eligible senior's

         11  income regardless of when the increase occurred or

         12  when the application was made.  It is our

         13  understanding that many seniors begin receiving

         14  SCRIE when they are using more than one- third of

         15  their income on rent.

         16                 The use of the amount of the senior's

         17  rent and percent of income paid for rent at the time

         18  of SCRIE application unfairly penalizes those

         19  seniors who did not learn about this program upon

         20  their first increase or when it first hit one- third

         21  of their income.  The contribution by the senior

         22  renter should not be frozen at the amount they were

         23  paying when they entered the program.  It should

         24  instead be rolled back to a standard one- third of

         25  their income regardless of the date of their
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          2  application.  This will put real money back in their

          3  pocket.

          4                 We recommend City Council conduct a

          5  fiscal analysis of the cost of such a roll back.  It

          6  can be done in two steps if necessary to expedite

          7  the senior receiving the SCRIE benefit. First, start

          8  the senior on SCRIE at the level they enter the

          9  program.  Second, within a specified time period,

         10  roll back their rent to one- third of their income.

         11                 V.  THE NEED FOR OUTREACH

         12                 There are many seniors that, although

         13  eligible, are not receiving the SCRIE exemption.

         14  Based on US Census Bureau statistics, over 113,000

         15  seniors meet the age, housing, and income

         16  requirements to have eligibility for SCRIE.

         17  However, only about 55,000 seniors are receiving the

         18  SCRIE exemption.  The other eligible seniors without

         19  the SCRIE exemption are possibly not aware of the

         20  program, the application process, or of their

         21  eligibility. Therefore, more aggressive outreach is

         22  necessary to expand the benefit to more eligible

         23  tenants.  The universe of eligible seniors would

         24  increase, if income limits are raised and

         25  unreimbursed medical expenses are allowed.
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          2                 We hope these goals can be attained

          3  and we will work with the New York City government

          4  to bring this to fruition.  Thank you again for the

          5  opportunity to testify.  Please feel free to contact

          6  us.

          7

          8  Testimony of:

          9  Arthur Webb

         10  President and Chief Executive Officer

         11  Village Care of New York

         12

         13                 I am Arthur Y. Webb, President and

         14  CEO of Village Care of New York, a not- for- profit

         15  provider of health, housing and supportive services

         16  for seniors and people living with MDS in New York

         17  City.  I am the immediate past chair of New York

         18  Association of Homes and Services for the Aging.

         19                 I strongly encourage you to pass

         20  Resolution 94, which supports New York State

         21  Assembly bill A.4886 and Senate bill S.2614, giving

         22  real property tax exemptions to not- for- profit

         23  corporations constructing affordable assisted living

         24  facilities for seniors with low- to middle- incomes.

         25                 Both my organization and NYAHSA
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          2  wholeheartedly endorse this legislation.  It is

          3  important to note that C. Virginia Fields, the

          4  President of the Borough of Manhattan, was the

          5  catalyst and leader behind this legislation.  The

          6  bills now under consideration by the State

          7  Legislature will help encourage development of

          8  affordable housing for older adults.  We owe Ms.

          9  Fields a debt of gratitude for her recognition of

         10  the importance of this legislation and for her

         11  strong support and leadership on behalf of seniors.

         12                 I urge your support for Resolution 94

         13  for several reasons:

         14                 Not- for- profits are the bulwark of

         15  services and housing for seniors in our City and

         16  State;

         17                 Middle- income seniors deserve the

         18  same access to these services as other seniors who

         19  are more affluent and who have more resources;

         20                 Tax exemption for such facilities

         21  should be made permanent to reduce unnecessary costs

         22  and delays in filing for exemptions on a project-

         23  by- project basis;

         24                 Not- for- profit entities need tax

         25  exemption incentives to compete in the marketplace,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            134

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  which is becoming dominated by publicly traded

          3  corporations; and,

          4                 With the growing number of seniors

          5  who wish to remain in their communities, but can no

          6  longer remain at home, access to these type of

          7  facilities is greatly needed.

          8                 Village Care is the proud sponsor of

          9  a new model of senior housing with services at The

         10  Village at 46 and 10 in Manhattan's Clinton

         11  neighborhood, formerly known as Hell's Kitchen.

         12                 We have learned from this experience

         13  that seniors who may no longer wish to remain at

         14  home, or who simply cannot continue to live with

         15  complete independence, need a facility such as ours

         16  in order to remain in the City to be close to their

         17  families and familiar services.

         18                 At the Village, we are able to

         19  support seniors in their quest to remain as

         20  independent as possible and to continue to remain

         21  active in their community.  We do this with a

         22  variety of services, which include two meals per

         23  day, weekly housekeeping and linen service, 24- hour

         24  security, concierge services and a live- in

         25  superintendent, along with a modest amount of
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          2  personal care when needed.  The seniors who are

          3  living with us perfectly fit the intent of the

          4  proposed legislation: We serve middle- and low-

          5  income seniors who require assistance with at least

          6  one instrumental activity of daily living and some

          7  supportive services.

          8                 All of our seniors can otherwise live

          9  very independently and are passionate about their

         10  freedom.

         11                 Without a tax exemption our annual

         12  cost of real property taxes would be close to

         13  $100,000 per year, which would have made this

         14  project close to being unaffordable to us, and to

         15  most not- for- profits.  We received a special tax

         16  exemption from City Council in Year 2000.

         17                 Providing tax exemptions in the way

         18  that would be established by the State Legislature

         19  would support an affordable option for seniors.  The

         20  growth of these facilities will not be excessive

         21  because of other economic factors, such as access to

         22  available and affordable real estate, the cost of

         23  construction and the cost of capital.  Those are

         24  other important factors that the City Council will

         25  have to address at some point in response to the
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          2  demographic imperative of the growing number of

          3  seniors in New York.

          4                 Places like The Village at 46 and 10,

          5  in the long term, are likely to forestall, even

          6  prevent, the use of more intensive and costly

          7  services.  That's another sound reason to encourage

          8  development of affordable housing: The longer we can

          9  avoid unnecessary utilization of nursing homes,

         10  which cost over $70,000 a year, the City and State

         11  save considerable amounts in Medicaid spending.

         12                 For all of those reasons and

         13  considerations, Resolution 94 ought be passed

         14  without any hesitancy.  In doing so, you would send

         15  a signal to seniors living in New York that our City

         16  will support older adults who wish to age amidst

         17  familiar surroundings, close to their friends and

         18  families.

         19                 Further, the tax exemption would

         20  create an incentive for not- for- profit providers

         21  to seek to develop facilities that address the

         22  community desires of the seniors in our City.

         23                 Thank you.

         24

         25  Testimony of:
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          2  C. Virginia Fields

          3  Manhattan Borough President

          4  Manhattan Borough President's Office

          5

          6                 Honorable Reverend Rueben Diaz and

          7  members of the Committee, I am here to testify in

          8  support of Resolutions 94, 133, and 146, which

          9  support State legislation that embody reforms that

         10  will help thousands of seniors remain in the

         11  community.  I am testifying in opposition of

         12  Resolution 143, which just does not do enough.

         13                 Resolution 94 calls upon the State to

         14  pass legislation that would grant a Real Property

         15  Tax Exemption to not for- profit developers of

         16  senior housing with services for moderate- and

         17  middle- income seniors.

         18                 As a strong advocate for seniors in

         19  Manhattan, I have worked on a number of issues

         20  including methods of increasing affordable housing

         21  options.  In an attempt to find solutions that would

         22  help reduce the cost for senior housing with

         23  services for moderate- and middle- income elderly, I

         24  initiated this legislation that would further

         25  broaden access to housing choices.  I thank you for
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          2  presenting this resolution for discussion.

          3                 Senior housing with access to

          4  services are part of a continuum of care that is

          5  commonly referred to as "Assisted Living."  This

          6  housing option is very difficult for people of

          7  moderate means to obtain.  The cost of for- profit

          8   "Assisted Living" types of housing is, typically,

          9  at least $4,000 per month and is only an alternative

         10  for a few seniors.

         11                 Given the City's current fiscal

         12  situation, I think I should ad that supporting this

         13  resolution will result in much greater savings in

         14  government costs for long- term care than what would

         15  be lost in Real Property Tax revenues.  Senior

         16  housing with services will delay the admission to

         17  nursing homes and thus reduce City monies that would

         18  be spent on Medicaid.

         19                 For example, the average cost of a

         20  nursing home in New York City is $70,000 per year,

         21  per person.  The federal government pays 50 percent

         22  of the Medicaid cost, the State pays 40 percent, and

         23  the City pays 10 percent.  If five seniors delay

         24  entering a nursing home by five months there will be

         25  an overall saving to the government of $145,825.
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          2                 The cost to the City in Real Property

          3  Tax Exemptions would be about $100,000 for a 120-

          4  unit building.  Each senior would have the direct

          5  benefit of a reduced rent.

          6                 In these difficult times, it is

          7  necessary to be creative in devising means to

          8  increase affordable housing for seniors.  We cannot

          9  forget that failing to do so will only result in

         10  more long- term problems.

         11                 For these reasons, I urge you to pass

         12  Resolution 94.

         13                 On September 21, 2000, I testified

         14  before the Committee on Aging on three resolutions,

         15  similar to 133, 143, and 146, concerning SCRIE, the

         16  Senior Citizen Rent Increase Exemption Program.  The

         17  critical difference was, at that time, the

         18  resolution on income eligibility call for an

         19  increase from $20,000 to $30,000.

         20                 Due to high rents and the fact that

         21  it has been seven very long years since there has

         22  been an adjustment to the incomes guidelines, I

         23  still hold that the income eligibility must be

         24  raised to $30,000.  Therefore, your current

         25  resolution supporting an increase to $25,000 is
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          2  inadequate.  And an increase of income eligibility

          3  to $30,000 has minimal fiscal impact.  The

          4  Independent Budget Office has estimated that after

          5  five years the cost to the City will be only $2.4

          6  million.

          7                 However, I do support, Resolutions

          8  133 and 146 that would update and revise the SCRIE

          9  Program.

         10                 These two resolutions call for:

         11                 Indexing income eligibility for SCRIE

         12  enrollment to the annual rate of inflation;

         13                 Excluding from determinations of

         14  eligibility for SCRIE the unreimbursed, out- of-

         15  pocket medical expenses of elderly tenants.

         16                 With the exception of single- parent

         17  families, elderly New Yorkers pay a greater share of

         18  their income for housing than do any other segment

         19  of our population.

         20                 But New York can and should also play

         21  its part in taking this burden off the shoulders of

         22  the elderly, and exempting out- of- pocket medical

         23  expenses from SCRIE is a good first step.

         24                 And resolution 133, by indexing

         25  income eligibility to the rate of inflation, would
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          2  eliminate the need for continual legislation to

          3  adjust income eligibility.  It will also help to

          4  relieve the desperate housing crisis many older New

          5  Yorkers who are on fixed incomes face.

          6                 These New Yorkers need our help.  I

          7  commend this Committee for bringing attention to

          8  their plight, and for continuing a much- needed

          9  dialogue on bringing relief to older New Yorkers.

         10                 There is State legislation, A8514 and

         11  S5146, that combines all aspects of the three

         12  changes that I support in SCRIE, Cost- of- Living

         13  Adjustments, excluding from income the out- of-

         14  pocket expenses for medical and prescription drug

         15  costs, and most importantly, increasing the income

         16  limit to $30,000.

         17                 For these reasons, I urge you, once

         18  again, to pass three of the four resolutions before

         19  you, Nos. 94, 133, and 143. I urge you to reject

         20  Resolution No. 146 and instead support a Resolution

         21  that would favor raising the income guidelines to

         22  $30,000.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 12:20 p.m.)

         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 26th day of April 2002.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT WTULICH

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

